OAKLAND POLICE COMMISSION

(X MEETING AGENDA
CITY OF OAKLAND Ap;l;?f’lf/? 20

Pursuant to the Governor's Executive Order N-29-20, members of the Police Commission, as well as
the Commission’s Counsel and Community Police Review Agency staff, will participate via
phone/video conference, and no physical teleconference locations are required.



OAKLAND POLICE COMMISSION

(X MEETING AGENDA
CITY OF OAKLAND Ap;‘;(zf’l’);f 20

PUBLIC PARTICIPATION

The Oakland Police Commission encourages public participation in the online board meetings. The public may observe
and/or participate in this meeting in several ways.

OBSERVE:

* To observe, the public may view the televised video conference by viewing KTOP channel 10 on Xfinity (Comcast) or ATT
Channel 99 and locating City of Oakland KTOP — Channel 10

* To observe the meeting by video conference, please click on this link:

https://zoom.us/j/95650834757 at the noticed meeting time. Instructions on how to join a meeting by video conference
are available at: https://support.zoom.us/hc/en-us/articles/201362193, which is a webpage entitled “Joining a Meeting”
¢ To listen to the meeting by phone, please call the numbers below at the noticed meeting time: Dial (for higher quality,
dial a number based on your current location):

1669 9009128 or +1 346 248 7799 or +1 646 558 8656 or +1 253 215 8782 or +1 301 715 8592 or +1 312 626 6799
For each number, please be patient and when requested, dial the following Webinar ID: 956 5083 4757

After calling any of these phone numbers, if you are asked for a participant ID or code, press #. Instructions on how to
join a meeting by phone are available at: https://support.zoom.us/hc/en-us/articles/201362663, which is a webpage
entitled “Joining a Meeting By Phone.”

PROVIDE PUBLIC COMMENT: There are three ways to make public comment within the time allotted for public comment
on an eligible Agenda item.

e Comment in advance. To send your comment directly to the Commission and staff BEFORE the meeting starts, please
send your comment, along with your full name and agenda item number you are commenting on, to Juanito Rus at
jrus@oaklandca.gov. Please note that eComment submissions close thirty (30) minutes before posted meeting time. All
submitted public comment will be provided to the Commissioners prior to the meeting.

¢ By Video Conference. To comment by Zoom video conference, click the “Raise Your Hand” button to request to speak
when Public Comment is being taken on a eligible agenda item at the beginning of the meeting. You will then be unmuted,
during your turn, and allowed to participate in public comment. After the allotted time, you will then be re-muted.
Instructions on how to “Raise Your Hand” are available at: https://support.zoom.us/hc/en-us/articles/205566129, which is
a webpage entitled “Raise Hand In Webinar.”

¢ By Phone. To comment by phone, please call on one of the above listed phone numbers. You will be prompted to “Raise
Your Hand” by pressing STAR-NINE (“*9”) to request to speak when Public Comment is being taken on a eligible agenda
item at the beginning of the meeting. Once it is your turn, you will be unmuted and allowed to make your comment. After
the allotted time, you will be re-muted. Instructions of how to raise your hand by phone are available at:
https://support.zoom.us/hc/en-us/articles/201362663, which is a webpage entitled “Joining a Meeting by Phone.”

If you have any questions about these protocols, please e-mail Juanito Rus, at jrus@oaklandca.gov.

PLEASE NOTE: DUE TO THE SUSPENSION OF THE SUNSHINE ORDINANCE AND THE CITY COUNCIL'S RULES OF PROCEDURES
ALL PUBLIC COMMENT ON OPEN SESSION ITEMS WILL BE TAKEN AT THE BEGINNING OF THE PUBLIC SESSION UNDER
ITEM Ill. PUBLIC COMMENT FOR ITEMS NOT ON THE AGENDA WILL BE TAKEN AT THE SAME TIME.


https://support.zoom.us/hc/en-us/articles/201362193
https://support.zoom.us/hc/en-us/articles/201362663
https://support.zoom.us/hc/en-us/articles/205566129
https://support.zoom.us/hc/en-us/articles/201362663

(‘X

CITY OF OAKLAND

VI.

VII.

OAKLAND POLICE COMMISSION

MEETING AGENDA
April 23, 2020
6:30 PM

Call to Order
Chair Regina Jackson

Roll Call and Determination of Quorum
Chair Regina Jackson

Welcome, Purpose, and Open Forum/Public Comment (2 minutes per speaker)

Chair Regina Jackson will welcome public speakers. The purpose of the Oakland Police
Commission is to oversee the Oakland Police Department's (OPD) policies, practices, and
customs to meet or exceed national standards of constitutional policing, and to oversee
the Community Police Review Agency (CPRA) which investigates police misconduct and
recommends discipline.

All public comment will be welcomed at this time. Speakers will be called on by the
facilitator as speakers “raise their hand” through video conference by telephone.

OPD Interim Police Chief Introduction
The Commission will introduce Susan Manheimer, the Interim Police Chief at OPD. This is
a new item. (Attachment 4).

a. Discussion

b. Action, if any

Renewal of Commission Legal Counsel
The Commission will discuss, and may vote on, renewal of the agreement with the law
firm Garcia Hernandez Sawhney LLP to serve as outside legal counsel. This is a new item.
a. Discussion
b. Action, if any

Report on and Review of CPRA Pending Cases, Completed Investigations, Staffing, and
Recent Activities
To the extent permitted by state and local law, Executive Director John Alden will report
on the Agency’s pending cases, completed investigations, staffing, and recent activities.
This is a recurring item. (Attachment 6).

a. Discussion

b. Action, if any

Police Commission and CPRA Budgets Update
The Commission will provide updates on the CPRA and Commission budgets for the mid-
cycle of FY 19-21. This is a new item.

a. Discussion

b. Action, if any



VIIL.

Xl.

Xll.

Xill.

XIV.

Update on City Auditor’s Commission and CPRA Audits
The Commission will provide an update on the status of the Police Commission and CPRA
audits that are being conducted by the City Auditor’s office. This item was discussed on
1.23.20 and 4.9.20.

a. Discussion

b. Action, if any

Draft Memorandum of Understanding (MOU): OPD and National Institute for Criminal
Justice Reform (NICJR)
The Commission will discuss a draft MOU between OPD and NICJR to establish an effective
partnership committed to the successful implementation of the Neighborhood
Opportunity and Accountability Board Diversion Program (NOAB). This is a new item.
(Attachment 9).

a. Discussion

b. Action, if any

Discipline Committee

An update will be provided from the Discipline Committee This is a new item.
a. Discussion
b. Action, if any

Annual Report Update
The Commission will discuss the updates that were made to the annual report. This item
was discussed on 4.9.20.

a. Discussion

b. Action, if any

Committee Reports
Representatives from Standing and Ad Hoc Committees will provide updates on their
work. This is a recurring item.

a. Discussion

b. Action, if any

Meeting Minutes Approval
The Commission will vote to approve minutes from April 9, 2020. This is a recurring item.
(Attachment 13).

a. Discussion

b. Action, if any

Agenda Setting and Prioritization of Upcoming Agenda Items
The Commission will engage in a working session to discuss and determine agenda items
for the upcoming Commission meeting and to agree on a list of agenda items to be
discussed on future agendas. This is a recurring item. (Attachment 14).

a. Discussion

b. Action, if any



XV.

XVI.

XVII.

XVIll.

Public Comment on Closed Session Items

THE OAKLAND POLICE COMMISSION WILL ADJOURN TO CLOSED SESSION AND WILL
REPORT ON ANY FINAL DECISIONS DURING THE POLICE COMMISSION’S OPEN SESSION
MEETING AGENDA.

Closed Session
CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL— ANTICIPATED LITIGATION: 1 CASE - Govt. Code §
54956.9(d)(2)

Report out of Closed Session
a. The Commission will report on any actions taken during Closed Session, as
required by law.

Adjournment

This meeting location is wheelchair accessible. To request disability-related
accommodations or to request an ASL, Cantonese, Mandarin, or Spanish interpreter,
please e-mail clove@oaklandca.gov or call 510-238-7785 or 711 at least five working days
before the meeting. Please refrain from wearing scented products to this meeting as a
courtesy to attendees with chemical sensitivities.

Esta reunidn es accesible para sillas de ruedas. Si desea solicitar adaptaciones
relacionadas con discapacidades, o para pedir un intérprete de en espafol, Cantones,
Mandarin, o de lenguaje de sefias (ASL) por favor envié un correo electrénico a
clove@oaklandca.gov o llame al 510-238-7785 o 711 por lo menos cinco dias habiles antes
de la reunidn. Se le pide de favor que no use perfumes a esta reunién como cortesia para
los que tienen sensibilidad a los productos quimicos. Gracias.

IS ESWRBEHE ARG, SEEEHBIRME, FiE AUVITE EENBEEINER
%, EEEEAEITEXEE clove@oaklandca.gov B, EE 510-238-7785 B, 711, i&
HMERRESEM  SNECEEEER 28U,

Because some persons are sensitive to certain chemicals, persons attending this meeting
are requested to refrain from wearing scented products.


mailto:clove@oaklandca.gov
mailto:clove@oaklandca.gov
mailto:clove@oaklandca.gov

Attachment 4

Police Chief Susan Manheimer
Bio

Before being named the “Top Cop” in San Mateo, Chief Manheimer served almost
17 years with the San Francisco Police Department (SFPD) 9/84 — 5/00. Her
assignments included robbery decoy work, and gang and violent-crime
suppression. She was both a Lieutenant and Captain of the Tenderloin Task Force,
a tough inner-city neighborhood. She proposed and spearheaded the first
Business Improvement District and Safety Ambassador program for the City and
County of San Francisco. Chief Manheimer also spearheaded the Ground breaking
Homeless Outreach Team and Quality of Life Beat Policing and the Juvenile
Diversion and Referral Center. Under her tenure, Manheimer was able to forge a
coalition of public, private, community-based organizations, and businesses to
“Take Back the Tenderloin.” This helped reduce blight and increased
neighborhood safety and quality of life, forging lasting coalitions engaging the
challenged community.

Chief Manheimer was recruited by the City of San Mateo and appointed Chief of
Police in May 2000. She continues her commitment to innovative neighborhood
policing partnerships. Under her leadership, with the support of the City of San
Mateo, and the men and women of the SMPD, award-winning programs have
improved the quality of life in San Mateo. She has been recognized on a national,
statewide, and regional level, and has recently won leading awards from the ADL,



Attachment 4

the NAACP, the California Police Chiefs Association, and the Peninsula Conflict
Resolution Center, to name a few.

The revitalization of downtown San Mateo has been greatly enhanced by several
initiatives she led for the City of San Mateo including the highly successful
Homeless Outreach Team (HOT), the trauma-informed Field Crisis ResponseTeam,
and the Workers Resource Service Center. She is a leader in San Mateo County’s
Local Action Plan to End Homelessness. The HOT Team’s successes in ending
chronic homelessness in downtown San Mateo has been replicated throughout
San Mateo County and all cities and the county now contribute to and utilize this
program recognized by the Federal Government for its efficacy.

Spearheading an effective effort to reduce Polynesian gang activity, Manheimer
enlisted allied agencies, community faith leaders, and elders to form the Tongan
Interfaith Council. They worked to drive down violent crime, particularly in
schools and parks. Manheimer was also one of the driving forces behind the long-
term, highly effective Countywide Gang Task Force, as well as the allied
interagency Gang Intelligence Unit and was their first Commander.

Now one of the senior tenured chiefs of police in the state, Manheimer is focused
on building a best-practices agency of excellence with established county-wide
protocols that produce evidence-based, sustainable solutions that strike at the
root of neighborhood safety and quality of life, while building legitimacy, trust,
and engagement between the police and the communities they serve. Involved at
the national, state, and local level, she is a longtime member of the Police
Executive Research Forum and is an Executive Fellow at the nationally recognized
Police Foundation. Manheimer was honored to have been selected to participate
in the most recent Executive Session on Policing at the Harvard Kennedy School of
Government.

Chief Manheimer received a Presidential Appointment to the Office of Violence
Against Women Act Re-commissioning. Manheimer is a noted expert on Juvenile
Justice and Child Protection serving as an appointee on key national, state, and
regional committees. She has chaired the International Association of Chiefs of
Police Juvenile Justice and Child Protection Committee for the past four years and
served as an appointee of Governor Jerry Brown to the State Advisory Group on
Juvenile Justice and Delinquency Prevention for many years. She is also an



Attachment 4

longterm appointee to the San Mateo County Juvenile Justice Coordinating
Council and the Community Corrections Partnership. Manheimer is the first
woman to have served as President of the California Police Chiefs” Association and
the San Mateo County Chiefs’ and Sheriff’s Association. Manheimer serves on
many local leadership boards including the San Mateo County Peninsula Conflict
Resolution Center, the University of San Francisco Law Enforcement Leadership
Institute, the San Mateo County NAACP Executive Board, and the San Mateo
Police Activities League. All of these activities bring community organizations and
the public together, and Manheimer believes in leveraging the resources of her
department and city to serve challenged and marginalized communities.

Chief Manheimer received her Bachelor of Arts Degree in Business Management
from Saint Mary’s College in Moraga, where she has taught a popular class on
Public Policy, and a Master’s Degree in Educational Leadership from San Diego
State University. She is a graduate of the POST Command College prestigious
executive training program.

Chief Manheimer resides in San Mateo County and has two adult children, Sarah,
a public sector attorney, and Jesse, a Major in the U.S. Marine Corps. Together
with her grandchildren, they enjoy skiing, hiking, rowing, and service to their
community.



Attachment 6

"13U10 10 Ajquuassy Juawipuswy 1T ‘yieaqg Apoisnd uj ‘82104 Jo 3sn ‘Buljioid ‘INg 248 uwnjod siyl ui paist) sadAy uonedajie ayl (11 2insea) 09 UOIII3S

12puey) Al puepjeQ J3pun palepuewd St UOIIBSIIS3AUL [[N4 B YdIYM 10} SUOIIES3||e SUIRlUOD UOIIBSIIS3AUI 34l J3Ylaym sassatppe uwnjod (13y10 40 (3)v09) 2dAL 3yl .

‘92104 JO 8SN ‘UoleUIWLISIJ pue JuswsseleH 14 Z T 82104 Jo asN 0z/ze/TT 6T/v2/S v loyrebusanuy| 6T/VC/TT 6T/92/TT 6T/V2/TT 02€T-6T
AnQ jo souewlopad T T 4 1BY10 02Z/2T/TT 0z/vels SO lorebusanuy 6T/VT/TT 6T/92/TT 6T/VT/TT TTET-6T
\ﬁ:h_ JO @ouewlopad ‘1sale 1o ‘ainzias 1o Ydieas
sadosdwiyfeuonuauiun Aoiuyig 1o aoey Aq Buold Anusp| 9 Z T Buiyold 0Z/ST/0T 0Z/ST/Y AN loyebnsanuy 6T/LT/0T 6T/LT/0T 6T/LT/0T €GTT-6T
UONe|OIA BPUBIIN ‘UOIBUILILIOSIP ‘ISalle aS[e} ‘9210} SAISS8IXT 1T € T uljiyoid ‘82104 Jo asn 02/ST/0T 0zZ/6T/Y a3 lorebusanuy 6T/LT/OT 6T/22/0T 6T/LT/0T 69TT-6T
Anp jo souewlopad ‘Joueawsp ‘82104 JoO asN 14 8 T 92104 JO asN 0¢2/6/0T 0cretiy a3 loyeBnsanul 6T/TT/0T 6T/ST/0T 6T/0T/0T €CTT-6T
loueawsaq T T Z 1BY10 02/8/0T 0z/8lv an e 6T/0T/0T 6T/TT/0T 6T/6/0T vTITI-6T
Ain@ jo souewiopad 8 14 T 92104 JO asN 0c/eloT 0c¢/91v v loyebnsanui 6T/S/0T 6T/6/0T 6T/S/0T €60T-6T
92104 JO asN S € T 92104 JO 3sN 0¢/e/oT 0c/9lv a3 loyebnsanui 6T/7/0T 6T/6/0T 6T/v/0T T60T-6T
AinQ jo souewiopad 4 T T 18Yyl1o0 02/8¢2/6 0c/og/e SO lojebnsanul 61/2/0T 6T1/2/0T 6T/0€/6 890T-6T
ssaujnyyini L ‘AinQ jo sdouewWIOoNSd g T T 1BY10 0z/T€/8 6T/LI8 NV lorebusanuy 6T/62/T 6T/8/C 6T/62/T G¥00-0¢
AinQ jo soueWIONad ‘92104 JO 3SN € 4 T 92104 JO asN 0¢/s¢/8 0c/sele v loyeBnsanul 6T1/.2/8 61/6¢2/8 6T/L2/8 TT60-6T
loueawap :Buiynopuey 18210} SAISSIX] € T T 92104 JO 3sN 0¢/v2/8 oclvele SC lojebnsanul 6T1/9¢/8 61/8¢/8 61/9¢2/8 9060-6T
‘92104
10 8S( 1S9 [NIME|UN ‘99€x/UONBUILILIOSI PUE JUSLISSeIeH S [4 T 92104 JO asN 0¢/LT/8 0¢/LTIC NV loyeBnsanul 6T/6T/8 6T/1¢2/8 6T/6T/8 ,/80-6T
92104 JO asN 4 4 T 92104 JO 3sN 0¢2/91/8 0c¢/LT/C AN loyebnsanul 6T/1¢2/8 6T/T2/8 6T/8T/8 6980-6T
loueawaq ‘YO ON ‘wurejdwo) a2IAI8S € € 4 1B3ylo 0c/og/L 0¢/T/e SO loyeBnsanul 6T/S/8 6T/S/8 6T/1E/L G//0-6T
AnQ jo souewlojiad Z 2 4 [eiaua9 0z/Le/L 0z/LelL ao e 0z/62/T 0z/62/T 0z/62/T 8600-0¢
*Ainp jo souewload 82104 J0 SN 4 T T 92104 JO asN ocivelL 0c/ele v loyeBnsanul 61/9¢/L 6T1/9/8 61/9¢/L €G.0-6T
Isaure [nymejun ‘82104 Jo asn GT 8 T 92104 Jo 8sN 02/6/L 0Z/vIS NV lorebnsanuyl 6T/TT/L 6T/9/TT 6T/¥2/9 £690-6T
ainzias/yoareas Jadoidwy ‘AinQ jo douewWIONdd A € 4 IElNile) 02/LIL 0Z/6/T NV lorebnsanul 61/6/L 6T/2T/L 61/92/9 G890-6T
laquinN [euss apinoid 01 ainjred ‘dois sadoiduwi 9 T T 1BUY10 02/62/9 0zZ/vIT SO lorebusanuy 6T/T/L 6T/8/L 6T/T/IL TG90-6T
jurejdwos
© e} 0} din|re} ‘s1auosiid Jo Apoisnd ‘uoie|oln epueli 12 S T 82104 Jo 8sN 02/92/9 0z/LT/Z a3 lorebusanuy 6T/02/8 6T/T2/8 6T/L2/9 8/80-6T
‘Joueawap ‘AInNp Jo asuewlopad 1salle as|e) ‘92.10J JO asN
An@ jo sduewWIoNad ‘92104 dAISS9IXT ‘Yoseas Jadoiduw) 1T 4 T 92104 JO 3sN 0¢/eel9 0c/vT/T AN loyeBnsanul 6T/8T/L 6T/8T/L 6T/v2/9 6T90-6T
uonebnsanul Jadoidw 4 Z T IElNle) 02/6T/9 61/8T/2T NN loyebnsanul 6T/LT/6 6T/LT/6 V/N G00T-6T
Anp jo souewlopad T T Z 1BUY10 02/6T/9 6T/8T/CT sr lorebnsanul 6T/02/9 6T/T2/9 6T/02/9 8290-6T
loueawsp 9210} SAISS8IX] g € T 82104 Jo 8sN 02/ST/9 6T/LT/CT AN lorebusanuy| 6T/LT/9 6T/02/9 6T/LT/9 T090-6T
92104 9AISS9IX3 1T € T 82104 Jo asN 02/ET/9 6T/LT/CT a3 lorebusanuy 6T/ST/9 6T/02/9 6T/ST/9 €650-6T
92104 dAISS9OXT ‘Yoseas sadoidwi 4 T T 92104 JO 3sN 0cC/ET/9 6T/LT/CT SO loyebnsanul 6T/ST/9 6T/ST/9 6T/CT/9 L6S0-6T
10V 01 ainjie4 ‘Uoday e axe] 0} ainjied ‘uoleulwldsIq L 14 T 1B3ylo 0¢/TT/9 6T/LT/CT NV loyebnsanui 6T/ET/9 6T/0¢2/9 6T/ET/9 06S0-6T
uodeam jo Bunuiod ‘82104 Jo 8sn ‘yoress Jadoidwi oueswaq 8T € T 80104 JO asN 0Z/0T/9 6T/LT/2T Se Jo1eBnseAu 6T/2T/9 61/02/9 6T/TT/9 G8S0-6T
Joueawsap (Buiynopuey {yaseas ‘saue ‘uonualep Jadoidw A Z 2 1sylo 02/T/9 6T/v/cT SC lorebnsanul 6T/./9 6T/./9 6T/0S/S 8GS0-6T
AnQ jo sduewIoldd ‘82104 Jo BsN 9 2 T 92104 Jo 8sN 02/8T/S 6T/9T/TT v loyebnsanui 6T/02/S 61/02/S 6T/02/S GTS0-6T
*Ainp jo @ouewioyad ‘(99e1) UOHRUIWLISIPAUSWISSRIRH 8 € T Buiyoid 0¢/cT/S 6T/TT/TT a3 loyebnsanul 6T/VT/S 6T/9T/S 6T/VT/S L6V0-6T
ssaunjyiniL T T T EMe) 0c/els oc/sel/e SO loyeBnsanul 6T1/.2/6 61/9¢/CT 6T1/S/S €G0T-6T
92104 JO 3sN T T T 92104 JO asN 0c/els 6T/T/TT v loyeBnsanul 6T/S/S 6T/ST/S 6T/S/S T910-6T
(s)uonebs|ly 1unod uonebs|ly SISO sse|o (1ay10 1o (T)(H109) [e09) Ieak-T [eos Aep-08T 1els loreBnisanul avl p.AdH vddO p.AdY a1eq 1uaplou| #9sed
109lqns adAL paubissy 10 axelu|

(1Je1s paubissy AqQ pallos) sase) bBulpuad

AONIOV MIJIATY 301'10d ALINNNINOD
ANVIAVO 40 ALID

(78 = Buipuad e101)
€ 0 T abed
0202/9T/¥




Attachment 6

"13U10 10 Ajquuassy Juawipuswy 1T ‘yieaqg Apoisnd uj ‘82104 Jo 3sn ‘Buljioid ‘INg 248 uwnjod siyl ui paist) sadAy uonedajie ayl (11 2insea) 09 UOIII3S

12puey) Al puepjeQ J3pun palepuewd St UOIIBSIIS3AUL [[N4 B YdIYM 10} SUOIIES3||e SUIRlUOD UOIIBSIIS3AUI 34l J3Ylaym sassatppe uwnjod (13y10 40 (3)v09) 2dAL 3yl .

(1Je1s paubissy AqQ pallos) sase) bBulpuad

AONIOV MIJIATY 301'10d ALINNNINOD
ANVIAVO 40 ALID

(78 = Buipuad e101)
€ 10 ¢ abed
0202/9T/¥

AnQ jo souewlopad T T Z 82104 Jo 8sN T2/l 0z/S2/8 an e oz/ele 02/.,2//20 0z/zele €920-0¢
92104 Jo 8sn g 2 T 92104 Jo 8sN T2/S2Ie 02/S2/8 an e 02/92/2 02/,2//20 02/92/2 9€20-0¢
An@ po souewiopad T T Z |SEIVED) 12/S2/C 02/62/8 ao e 0z/Se/e 0z/z/e 6T/ST/TT 0,20-02
Jureldwo d2IAI8S T T 0 Jure|dwo) d21M8S 12/v2IC 0z/vel8 an e oz/vere 02/92/2 0z/zele ¥020-02
S1ayi0 spremo 1onpuo ‘AinQ Jo sduewlopad 14 T 4 [elsus9 12/€2/2 0z/€2/8 an e 6T/EC/C oz/szre oz/eere 9020-0¢
AnQ jo souewlojiad T T 4 1BY10 12/12/2 0z/12/8 an e oz/ee/e oz/ee/e oz/ee/e 8220-0¢
SIBYI0 SpJemo 1onpuod 14 14 T Buiyoud reroey 12/12/2 0z/12/8 E0) e 0z/ez/e 0z/ee/e oz/ezle 1120-0C
An@ jo sduewiolad T T 4 IEINe) 12/8T/2 02/8T/8 an e 02/6T/2 02/02/2 02/6T/2 0020-02
92104 Jo asn T T T 82104 Jo asN T2V 02/6/8 an el 0z/vTIC 0zZ/TT/2 0z/0T/C LLT0-0C
An@ jo sduewIOlad T T 4 IElNile) 12/8/2 02/8/8 an e 0z/El 02/0T/2 02/0T/2 1020-0¢
92104 Jo 8sn T T T 92104 Jo 8sn 12/LI2 02/TT/8 an e 0z/8/2 0Z/ET/Z 02/0T/2 T9T0-0¢
82104 Jo 8sN T T T 82104 Jo asN 12/S/2 0zZ/TT/8 ao el 0z/S/2 0zZ/ET/Z 0z/LIz 09T0-02
92104 Jo 8sN T T T 92104 Jo 8sN T2/0E/T 0z/2/8 an e 0zZ/TEIT 0z/viz 0Z/TE/T 6TT0-0C
92104 Jo 8sn T T T 92104 Jo 8sN TZ/0E/T 0z/62/L an e 02/0€/T 02Z/TE/T 0z/62/T 90T0-0¢
AnQ jo dduewWlIoNdd/SIBYIO SPIEMO }ONpU0D € T T JuswsseleH TZ/0E/T 0z/z/8 ao e 02/0€/T 0z/viz 02/ GZT0-0C
/ UONELILILOSIP PUE UBLISSEIEH) SISO SPIEMO) B:Awmmw T T T JuswssereH 12/82/T 0z/62/L ao e 02/0€/T 0Z/TE/T 0z/62/T ¥0T0-02
/ UONELILILASIP PUE JUBLISSBIRH) SISO SPIEMO) U:A_wmmw T T T JuswssereH 12/L2/T 02/92/L ao e 0zZ/T/T 02/82/T 02/82/T 8800-0¢
92104 Jo 8sN € T T 92104 Jo 8sN 12/v2/T 02/92/L an el oz/velt 02/82/T 0Z/0T/T G800-0¢
Ain@ jo sdueWIONSd / SIBYIO SPIEMO 1ONpU0) Z Z T JuswssereH 12/02/T 02/2/8 an e 0z/02/T 0zZ/viZ 0z/zz/t 9T10-0¢
82104 Jo 8sN T T T 82104 J0 8sN T2/6T/T 0z/02/L an el 02/6T/T 0z/ze/t 6T/ST/CT G900-0¢
92104 Jo 8sN 9 Z T 82104 Jo 8sN T2IVTIT 0zZ/vTIL an el 0z/PTIT 02/9T/T 0Z/VTIT 0S00-02
uodai ayeinoodeu 1 T T 1By10 T2/TT/T 0z/vT/L Sr loyebnsanuy 02/IvTIT 02/9/T 6T/02/TT TS00-02
‘(a0ey

/ UOIEUILILIOSID PUE JUAWSSEIRH) SIALI0 SPIeMO] JoNPUOT € € T JuswsseleH 12/8/T 0Z/ET/L ao e 0z2/0T/T 0Z/ST/T 02/0T/T ¥¥00-02
Ain@ jo sduewiopad T T 4 [eisaua9 12/8/T 0Z/ET/L ao e 02/0T/T 0Z/ST/T 02/0T/T Zv00-0¢
92104 Jo 8sn Z T T 82104 Jo 8sN T2ILIT 02/8/L ao el 02/6/T 0Z/0T/T 02/6/T G€00--0¢
Buiyoid Z T T Bunyoid 12/9/T 02/S/L an e 02/9/T 0zZ/LIT 6T/22/L 8T00-0¢
92104 JO 8sN Z T T 82104 Jo asN oz/ve/et 02/82/9 NY e 61/92/2T 6T/TE/CT 61/92/2T LyvT-6T
AnQ jo souewload T T r4 [e1sus9 0z/zz/et 02/9T/9 ao e 6T/E2/CT 6T/6T/CT 6T/€2/2T vyvT-6T
92104 Jo 8sn T T T 92104 Jo 8sN 0z/zz/et 0z/ve/9 an e 6T/ve/CT 6T/L2/2T 6T/¥2/CT Ov¥I-6T
92104 Jo 8sn T T T 92104 Jo 8sN 02/6T/2T 0z/€2/9 ao e 6T/12/CT 6T/92/2T 6T/02/2T €CYT-61
AnQ jo souewlopiad 4 Z T 1ByY10 02/ST/2T 02/ST/9 ao e 6T/LT/CT 6T/8T/CT 6T/LT/CT ovYT-6T
82104 Jo 8sN T T T 82104 J0 8sN 0Z/ET/CT 0zZ/vT/9 ao el 6T/ST/CT 6T/LT/CT 6T/ST/CT 86€T-6T
92104 Jo 8sN 14 4 T 92104 Jo 8sN 02/1T/2T 02/vT/9 SC e 6T/ET/CT 6T/6T/CT 6T/ET/ZT T6ET-6T
‘92104 Jo asn ‘Ainq jo sourWIONAd € T T 82104 Jo asN 0z/0T/2T 02/0T/9 ao e 6T/2T/CT 6T/ET/CT 6T/8/2T 06€T-6T
‘Ain@ Jo dduURWIONSd ‘UoHBUIWLISI PUe JUSWSSeIeH 4 T T Buiyoid 02/S2/TT 6T/TE/S ao e 6T/L2Z/TT 6T/E/ICT 6T/TE/S 8ZET-6T
(s)uonebs|ly 1unod uonebs|ly SISO sse|o (1ay10 1o (T)(H109) [e09) Ieak-T [eos Aep-08T 1els loreBnisanul avl p.AdH vddO p.AdY a1eq 1uaplou| #9sed

109lqns adAL paubissy 10 axelu|




Attachment 6

13410 10 Ajquiassy Juawpusawy 1sT ‘yieag Apoisnd uj ‘82104 JO 35N ‘Buljijold ‘ING 348 UNjod siyl ui paist) sadAy uonedajie ayl (711 ainsea) 09 UOIID3S
12puey) Al puepjeQ J3pun palepuewd St UOIIBSIIS3AUL [[N4 B YdIYM 10} SUOIIES3||e SUIRlUOD UOIIBSIIS3AUI 34l J3Ylaym sassatppe uwnjod (13y10 40 (3)v09) 2dAL 3yl .

"uoie|oiA qydd -19seL Jo asn T T T 92104 JO 3sN p3jioL 8T/¥/0T SC loyebnsanui 8T/vIv 8T/CTIV 8T/vIv GEEO-8T
Ain@ jo sduewiopad € T 4 1B3ylo TITlv 02/8¢2/6 an I elu| 0¢C/TEIE 0c/Te/e 0C/TT/E 6.€0-0¢
92104 JO 3sN 4 T T 92104 JO asN Té/ec/e 0¢2/9¢/6 AN loyeBnsanul oc/og/e 0c/og/e oc¢/ec/e G8€0-0¢
Ain@ jo sduewiopad 14 T 4 1BYy10 Té/Le/E 0¢/2¢/6 daiN aXelu] 0¢2/9¢/E 0¢2/9¢/e 0¢/8¢/¢ T9€0-0¢
Ain@ jo sduewiopad T T 4 18410 T2/9¢/€ 0¢2/8¢/6 an axelu] 0¢/9¢/e ocrtiy 0¢2/9¢/e 79€0-0¢
92104 JO 3sN T T T 92104 JO 3sN T2/9¢/E 0¢2/e2/6 dai aXelu] 02/9¢/e 0¢/Lzele 0¢2/9¢/e 6G€0-0C
AnQ jo souewlojiad T T 4 |y10 12/8T/E 02/€T/6 an e 02/LT/E 0zZ/LT/E 02Z/TT/E 22€0-0C
AnQ jo souewoipiad I4 Z r4 AnQ jo souewlopad 12/8T/E 0202/91/6 ao e 0z2/6T/E 0z/0z2/e 0z/6T/E ¥€€0-0C
AnQ jo souewlIoyad/a2104 Jo asN I4 T T 92104 JO @sN 12/9T/€ 0202/¥1/6 ao e 02/LTIE 0z/8T/E 02/LT/E G2e0-0¢
92104 JO 3asN 6 € T 92104 JO 3sN TZ/ST/E 0¢/ET/6 an el 0c/st/e 0c¢/LT/E 0c/vi/e €TE0-0¢
92104 JO 3sN € T T 92104 JO 3sN TZIvTie 0¢/6/6 an el oc/eT/e oc/eT/E oc/eT/E TTE0-0¢
AnQ jo souewiopad 14 T 4 13y10 TZ/0T/E 02/9/6 an oSXelu] 0c/e/e 0¢/6/€ 6T/C/L 18¢20-0¢
Ain@ jo souewiopad T T 4 1B3ylo TZ/9/€ 0c¢/62/8 an I e| oc/s/e 0c/e/e ocivie ¥/,20-0¢
82104 JO asn € T T 82104 Jo asn 12/S/€ 02/9/6 ao e 02/9/€ 0z/0T/E 0z/zele L120-0C
92104 JO 3sN T T T 92104 JO 3sN TZ/ElE 0c/el6 an el oc/vie 0c¢/9/e 0c¢ivie 2.20-0¢
(s)uoneba|ly junod uonebd|ly SO sse|D (1830 10 (T)(H)¥09) [e09 Jeak-T [eo9 Aep-08T yels lojebnsanul avl p.AdY vddO p.AdY areq 1uaplou| # 9seD
109lqns adAL paubissy 10 axelu|

(1Je1s paubissy AqQ pallos) sase) bBulpuad

AONIOV MIJIATY 301'10d ALINNNINOD
ANVIAVO 40 ALID

(78 = Buipuad e101)
¢ Jo ¢ abed
020Z/9T/v




Attachment 6

"13U10 10 Ajquuassy Juawipuswy 1T ‘yieaqg Apoisnd uj ‘82104 Jo 3sn ‘Buljioid ‘INg 248 uwnjod siyl ui paist) sadAy uonedajie ayl (11 2insea) 09 UOIII3S

12puey) Al puepjeQ J3pun palepuewd St UOIIBSIIS3AUL [[N4 B YdIYM 10} SUOIIES3||e SUIRlUOD UOIIBSIIS3AUI 34l J3Ylaym sassatppe uwnjod (13y10 40 (3)v09) 2dAL 3yl .

(1Je1s paubissy AqQ pallos) sase) bBulpuad

AONIOV MIJIATY 301'10d ALINNNINOD
ANVIAVO 40 ALID

(78 = Buipuad e101)
€ 0 T abed
0202/9T/¥

92104 Jo 8sN 4 Z T 92104 Jo 8sN 02/91/8 0zZ/LT/Z AN loyebusanuy 6T/12/8 6T/T2/8 6T/8T/8 6980-6T
AinQ@ jo soueWIONdd ‘92104 BAISSIXT ‘Yaseas Jadoiduwi 1T Z T 92104 Jo 8sN 02/22/9 0ZIvT/T AN lorebnsanu 6T/8T/L 6T/8T/L 6T/¥2/9 6T90-6T
loueawsp 9210} BAISSEIX] g € T 82104 Jo asN 02/ST/9 6T/LT/ZT AN loyrebusanuy| 6T/LT/9 6T/02/9 6T/LT/9 T090-6T
vodal ajeinddeu] T T T 1By10 T2/TT/T 0zZ/vTIL sr lorebusanuy| 0z/PTIT 02/9/T 6T/02/TT 1500-02
loueawap Bulynopuey 19210} SAISSSIXT € T T 92104 Jo 8sN 0z/ve/8 ozivele SC loyebnsanu 61/92/8 61/82/8 6T1/92/8 9060-6T
Anp jo sdueWIONad T T 4 IElN{e) 02/6T/9 6T/8T/CT St lorebnsanuyl 6T/02/9 6T/T2/9 6T/02/9 8290-6T
uodeam jo Bunuiod 192104 Jo asn ‘yoreas 1adoidwi Loueawag 8T € T 92104 J0 asN 02/0T/9 6T/LT/CT SC lorebusanuy 6T/2T/9 6T/02/9 6T/TT/9 G8S0-6T
Joueawsap Bulynopuey ‘yoseas sale ‘uonualap Jadoidw A 2 2 1sylo 02/T/9 6T/v/cT SC Joyebnsanul 6T/./9 6T/./9 6T/0S/S 8GS0-6T
‘uolyejoln qddd 1asel Jo asn T T T 82104 J0 asN pajjoL 8T/¥/0T SC loyebusanuy| 8T/vIv 8T/CTIV 8T/vIv GEE0-8T
UONBIOIA BPUBIIA ‘UONRUIWLIOSIP ‘ISaLIe 8S[e} ‘9210 SAISS8IXT 1T € T uljijoid ‘82104 Jo asn 02/ST/0T 0Z/6T/Y a3 lorebnsanul 6T/LT/OT 61/22/0T 6T/LT/OT 69TT-6T
Anp jo souewiopad ‘Joueswsap ‘92104 JO asN 1 8 T 92104 Jo 8sN 02/6/0T 0zZ/ZTlY a3 loyebusanuy 6T/TT/OT 6T/ST/0T 6T/0T/0T €CTT-6T
92104 Jo 8sN g € T 92104 Jo 8sN 02/2/0T 0z/91v a3 loyebnsanui 6T/¥/0T 61/6/0T 6T/v/0T 160T-6T
jurejdwo?
© 9e) 0} ain|re} ‘s1auosiid Jo Apoisnod ‘uoirejoln epuelin 12 S T 92104 Jo 8sN 02/92/9 0z/LT/2 a3 loyebnsanu 6T/02/8 6T/T2/8 6T/L2/9 8/80-6T
‘loueawap .\ﬁ:_o JO mocmE._Oth ‘1salle as|ej ‘9210} JO asN
92104 dAISS9IX3 1T € T 92104 Jo 8sN 0Z/ET/9 6T/LT/CT a3 lorebnsanuy 6T/ST/9 6T/02/9 6T/ST/9 €650-6T
"Ainp jo souewopad ‘(adel) uoneUIWLISIPAUBWSSEIEH 8 € T Buiyoid 02/2T/S 6T/TT/TT a3 loyrebusanuy 6T/VT/S 6T/ST/S 6T/VT/S L670-6T
AnQ jo souewlopiad T T 4 1BUY10 02Z/2T/TT 0z/velS SO lorebnsanul 6T/VT/TT 6T/92/TT 6T/YT/TT TTET-6T
AnQ jo souewlopiad 4 T T 1By10 02/82/6 0z/0€/E SO loyebnsanuy 61/2/0T 61/2/0T 6T/0E/6 890T-6T
ssaunyINIL T T T 1ByY10 0Z/EIS 0z/Se/E SO lorebnsanuy 6T/L2/6 6T/92/2T 6T/S/S €G0T-6T
loueawad ‘YOI ON ‘Jure[dwo) a2INIBS € € Z 1By10 02/0€/L 0z/1I2 SO loyebnsanui 6T/G/8 6T/G/8 6T/TE/L GLL0-6T
1aquinN [eL8S 8pInoid 01 ainjieq ‘dols Jadoidw 9 T T IEe) 0z/62/9 ozIviT SO loyefnsanu 6T/T/L 6T/8/L 6T/T/L TG90-6T
92104 9AISS9IX] ‘Ydleas Jadoidw 4 T T 82104 Jo 8sN 0Z/ET/9 6T/LT/CT SO lorebusanuy 6T/ST/9 6T/ST/9 6T/2T/9 L6S0-6T
ssaujnyuyiniL ‘AinQ jo dduewIopdd S T T 1ByY10 02/T€/8 6T/LI8 NV lorebnsanuyl 61/62/T 6T/8/C 6T/62/T G700-0¢
‘90104
JO 89S “1Salle [NJMB|UN ‘99 ¥ /UOIRUIWLIISIC PUe JusWSSeIeH S Z T 92104 Jo 8sN 02/LT/8 0z/LT/2 NV loyebnsanuy 6T/6T/8 6T/T2/8 6T/6T/8 L/80-6T
Isaure [nymejun ‘82104 Jo asn ST 8 T 82104 Jo 8sN 02/6/L 02Z/vIS NV lorebusanuy 6T/TT/L 6T/9/TT 6T/v2/9 €690-6T
ainziag/yoreas Jadoidw ‘AinQ Jo doueWIONSd T € Z 1BY10 02Z/LIL 0z/6/T NV lorebnsanu 61/6/L 6T/2T/L 6T/92/9 G890-6T
10V 0} ainjre ‘Hoday e e 0} ain|ieq ‘UoeUIULIDSIF L 14 T 1By10 02Z/TT/9 6T/LT/ICT NV lorebnsanuy 6T/ET/9 6T/02/9 6T/ET/9 06S0-6T
‘80104 JO 9SN ‘UONBUIWLISIJ pue JuswsseleH 14 4 T 92104 Jo 8sN 0z/2eiTT 6T/v2/S v loyebnsanuyl 6T/VC/TT 6T/92/TT 6T/v2ITT 02€T-6T
AnQ jo souewlopiad 8 14 T 92104 Jo 8sN 0z/€/0T 0z/9/v v lorebusanuy 6T/G/0T 6T/6/0T 6T/S/0T €60T-6T
AnQ jo souewWIolad ‘92104 JO BsN € 4 T 92104 Jo 8sN 02/S2/8 0z/Se/e v loyebusanuy 6T/L2/8 6T/62/8 6T/L2/8 T160-6T
*Ainp Jo souewIopad 182104 4O dsN 4 T T 82104 J0 asN oz/velL 0z/zie v lorebusanuy 61/92/L 6T/9/8 6T/92/.L €6/0-6T
AnQ jo souewlIolad ‘92104 Jo dsN 9 Z T 92104 Jo 8sN 02/8T/S 6T/9T/TT v lorebusanuy 6T/02/S 6T/02/S 6T/02/S GTS0-6T
92104 Jo 8sn T T T 92104 Jo 8sN 0z/ElS 6T/T/TT v lorebnsanul 6T/S/S 6T/ST/S 6T/S/S T9%0-6T
(s)uonebs|ly 1unod uonebs|ly SISO sse|o (1ay10 1o (T)(H109) [e09) Ieak-T [eos Aep-08T 1els loreBnisanul avl p.AdH vddO p.AdY a1eq 1uaplou| #9sed
109lqns adAL paubissy 10 axelu|




Attachment 6

"13U10 10 Ajquuassy Juawipuswy 1T ‘yieaqg Apoisnd uj ‘82104 Jo 3sn ‘Buljioid ‘INg 248 uwnjod siyl ui paist) sadAy uonedajie ayl (11 2insea) 09 UOIII3S

12puey) Al puepjeQ J3pun palepuewd St UOIIBSIIS3AUL [[N4 B YdIYM 10} SUOIIES3||e SUIRlUOD UOIIBSIIS3AUI 34l J3Ylaym sassatppe uwnjod (13y10 40 (3)v09) 2dAL 3yl .

92104 Jo asN 1 T T 92104 Jo asN T2/0E/T 0z/62/L an e 02/0E/T 0Z/TE/T 0z/62/T 90T0-02
99104 Jo asN € T T 82104 JO asN T2/veT 02/92/L an e 0zivelt 02/82/T 0Z/0T/T G800-0¢
82104 Jo asN 1 T T 82104 Jo asN 12/6T/T 0z/02/L an e 0Z/6T/T oc/ezlt 6T/ST/ZT G900-0¢
92104 Jo asN 9 4 T 82104 Jo asN T2VTIT 0ZIVTIL an e 0zZIVT/T 02Z/91/T 0zZVIIT 0500-02
Buiyoid 4 T T Buyoid 12/9/1 0z/S/L an e 0z/9/T 0z/LIT 6T/22IL 8T00-0¢
Joueawa( 1 T Z 18Y10 02/8/0T 0z/8/1v an e 6T/0T/0T 6T/TT/OT 61/6/0T YTITT-6T
92104 Jo asN 14 4 T 82104 Jo asN 02Z/11/2T 0Z/vT/9 Se e 6T/ET/CT 6T/6T/2T 6T/ET/ZT T6ET-6T
SISU10 SpsemoL 19Npuo) 14 14 T Buiyoud reroey 12/12/2 0z/12/8 =) e oz/gzie oz/gzle oc/ezle T120-0¢
Ang Jo sourWOIAd 4 4 4 Aing jo souewlopad T2/8T/E 020¢/91/6 ao el 02/6T/E 02/02/€ 02Z/6T/E ¥£€0-02
AnQ@ jo souewlIoad/a2104 Jo asN 4 T T 82104 Jo asN 12/9T/€ 020z/v1/6 an e 02/LT/E 0z/8T/E 0Z/LTIE GZ€0-02
82104 Jo asN € T T 82104 Jo s 12/9/6 02/9/6 an axe| 0z/9/€ 02/0T/E oc/ezre L120-02
An@ po sduewWIONad 1 T 4 [esaue9 12/S2/e 0z/62/8 an e 0z/Se/e oz/eie 6T/8T/TT 0,20-02
SIaY0 spsemo] 1npuo) ‘Aing jo sduewliopad 14 T Z [eisaua9 12/€2/2 0z/e2/8 an e 6T/€2/C oz/se/e 0z/ezle 9020-02
ureldwo d2IAI8S 1 T 0 ureldwo) 921M8S T2/v2Ie 0z/ve/8 an e oz/velz 0z/92/2 0z/zzre ¥020-02
92104 Jo asN 1 T T 82104 Jo asN 12/S/T 02/11/8 an e 0z/S/e 0z/ETIT 0z/Llz 09T0-02
AnQ jo ddoueWIONdd/SIBYIO SPIEMO }ONPpU0D € T T JuswssereH T2/0E/T 0c/e/8 an e 02/0E/T 0zivie 0z/1/e GZT10-0¢
Ainq jo sdueWIONSd / SIBYIO SPIEMO 1ONPU0D 4 4 T JuswssereH 12/02/T 0z/el8 an e 0z/02/T 0zivie oc/eert 9T10-0¢
(e0ey
/ UOHRUILILIASID PUB JUALISSEIRH) SIS0 SPIEMO) 19NpUoS 1 T T JuswisseleH 12/82/T 0z/62/L an e 0Z/0E/T 0Z/TEIT 0z/62/T ¥0T0-02
AnQ jo souewlojiad 4 4 4 [esaua9 0z/L2/L 0z/LzlIL an e 02/62/T 0z/62/T 0z/62/T 8600-02
(eoey
JUCHRUILLIRSID PUE JUALISSEIRH) SIS0 SPIEMO) 19npUoS 1 T T JuswisseleH T12/L2/T 02/92/L an e 0z/1/T 02/82/T 02/82/T 8800-0¢
/ UOMEUILILIOSIP PUE JUSWSSEIRH) SIS0 SPIEMO] Houwmmw € € T JuswssereH 12/8/T 0C/ETIL an e 02/0T/T 0Z/ST/T 0Z/0T/T ¥¥00-02
An@ jo sduewlolad T T 4 [eJau99) 12/8/T 0C/ETIL an e 0Z/0T/T 0Z/ST/T 0Z/0T/T Z00-0¢
92104 Jo asN 4 T T 82104 Jo asN T2ILIT 0z/8/. an e 02/6/T 0Z/0T/T 0z/6/T G€00--02
An@ jo souewiopad 4 Z T 1_BYI0 02/ST/2T 02/ST/9 an e 6T/LT/2T 6T/8T/2T 6T/LT/2T ovYT-6T
Ain@ jo sduewiopad 1 T Z [eisaua9 0z/zzlet 02/9T/9 an e 6T/€2/2T 6T/6T/2T 6T/E2/2T vyvT-61
92104 Jo asN 1 T T 82104 Jo asN 0z/ezlet 0z/ve/9 an e 6T/v2IeT 6T/L2/2T 6T/v2IeT Ov¥T-6T
82104 JO asN T T T 82104 Jo asN 02/6T/2T 0z/€2/9 an e 61/12/2T 61/92/2T 61/02/2T €CYT-6T
82104 Jo asN 1 T T 82104 Jo asN 0C/ET/CT 0Z/VT/9 an e 6T/ST/2T 6T/LT/ZT 6T/ST/CT 86€T-6T
‘80104 Jo asN ‘AINQ Jo soueWIONSd € T T 82104 Jo 8sN 0z/0T/2T 02/0T/9 an e 6T/2T/2T 6T/ET/CT 61/8/2T 06€T-6T
‘Ain@ J0 dduURWIONSd ‘UOIBUIWLISI] PUe JUSWSSeIeH 4 T T Buiyoid 02/S2/TT 6T/TE/S an e 6T/L2/TT 6T/E/CT 6T/TE/S 8ZET-6T
82104 Jo asn 4 T T 82104 Jo asN 0z/veiet 02/82/9 NV e 61/92/2T 6T/TE/CT 61/92/2T LvYT-6T
92104 Jo 8sN 4 T T 82104 Jo 8sN 12/62/€ 02/92/6 AN lorebnsanu| 02Z/0€/E 02/0E/E 0z/62/E G8€0-0¢
AIn@ Jo aouewlIouad {1salle 10 ‘aInzias 10 yoseas
sadosduy/feuonuaiuiun oiuug 1o aoey Aq Bulold Anusp| 9 4 T Buiyoid 0Z/ST/0T 02/ST/v NI lorebusanuy| 6T/LT/0T 6T/LT/OT 6T/LT/OT €GTT-6T
uonyebnsanul Jadoidwi 4 Z T 1B3Y1I0 02/6T/9 6T/8T/CT NIN loyefinsanu 6T/LT/6 6T/LT/6 V/IN GO0T-6T
(s)uonebs|ly 1unod uonebs|ly SISO sse|o (1ay10 1o (T)(H109) [e09) Ieak-T [eos Aep-08T 1els loreBnisanul avl p.AdH vddO p.AdY a1eq 1uaplou| #9sed
109lqns adAL paubissy 10 axelu|

(1Je1s paubissy AqQ pallos) sase) bBulpuad

AONIOV MIJIATY 301'10d ALINNNINOD
ANVIAVO 40 ALID

(78 = Buipuad e101)
€ 10 ¢ abed
0202/9T/¥




Attachment 6

13410 10 Ajquiassy Juawpusawy 1sT ‘yieag Apoisnd uj ‘82104 JO 35N ‘Buljijold ‘ING 348 UNjod siyl ui paist) sadAy uonedajie ayl (711 ainsea) 09 UOIID3S
12puey) Al puepjeQ J3pun palepuewd St UOIIBSIIS3AUL [[N4 B YdIYM 10} SUOIIES3||e SUIRlUOD UOIIBSIIS3AUI 34l J3Ylaym sassatppe uwnjod (13y10 40 (3)v09) 2dAL 3yl .

(78 = Buipuad e101)
¢ Jo ¢ abed
020Z/9T/v

(1Je1s paubissy AqQ pallos) sase) bBulpuad

AONIOV MIJIATY 301'10d ALINNNINOD
ANVIAVO 40 ALID

AnQ jo souewlopad € T 4 1By10 12/T1¥ 02/82/6 an e 0z/tele 0zZ/TE/E 0zZ/TT/E 6.€0-0C
An@ jo sduewlIolad T T 4 IElN{e) 12/92/€ 02/82/6 an e 02/92/€ 0z/TiY 02/92/€ ¥9€0-02
An@ jo sduewiolad 14 T 4 1By10 T2/L2/E 02/22/6 an e 0z/92/€ 02/92/€ 0z/82/2 T9€0-0C
92104 Jo 8sn T T T 92104 Jo 8sN 12/92/€ 02/€2/6 an e 02/92/€ oc/Lzie 02/92/€ 65€0-0¢

Ain@ jo sduewlolad T T 4 1By10 12/8T/€ 0Z/ET/6 an e 0Z/LT/E 0Z/LTIE 02Z/TT/E 2ze0-0¢
92104 Jo 8sn 6 € T 92104 Jo 8sN 12/ST/E 0Z/ET/6 an e 02/ST/E 02/LT/E 0zZIvT/E €T€0-0¢

82104 Jo 8sN € T T 82104 J0 asN T2IVTIE 02/6/6 an el 0zZ/ET/E 0Z/ET/E 0Z/ET/E TT€0-0C

AnQ jo souewlopiad 14 T Z 1810 12/0T/E 02/9/6 an e 0z/6/€ 02/6/€ 6T/2IL 1820-0¢
AnQ jo souewlopiad T T Z 1BY10 12/9/€ 0z/62/8 an e 0z/S/E 0z/z/e 0zIviE ¥.20-02
92104 Jo 8sN T T T 82104 J0 8sN T2/l 0z/2/6 an el 0z/viE 02/9/€ 0zIvIE 2L20-0¢

AnQ jo souewlopiad T T 4 82104 Jo 8sN T2/l 0z/S2/8 an e 0z/ele 02/,2//20 0z/zele €920-0¢
92104 Jo 8sN g Z T 92104 J0 8sN 12/S2/2 02/S2/8 an el 02/92/2 02/,2//20 02/92/2 9€20-0¢

An@ jo sduewiolad T T 4 IElNle) 12/12/2 0z/12/8 an e oz/ez/e 0z/eere oz/eele 8220-0¢
AnQ jo souewlojiad T T Z IElN o) 12/8/2 02/8/8 an e 0z/ere 02/0T/2 02/0T/C 1020-0¢
AnQ jo souewlopiad T T 4 1By10 12/8T/2 02/8T/8 an e 02/6T/2 0z/02/2 0z/6T/2 0020-02
92104 Jo 8sn T T T 92104 Jo 8sN T2Iv1Ie 02/6/8 an e 0z/vTie 02/11/2 02/0T/2 LLT0-02

82104 Jo 8sN T T T 82104 Jo asN 121112 02/TT/8 an e 0z/812 0z/ET/C 02/0T/ T9T0-0C

92104 Jo 8sN T T T 92104 J0 8sN T2/0E/T 0z/z/8 an el 0zZ/TEIT 0z/viz 0Z/TE/T 6TT0-0C
(s)uonebs|ly 1unod uonebs|ly SISO sse|o (1ay10 1o (T)(H109) [e09) Ieak-T [eos Aep-08T 1els loreBnisanul avl p.AdH vddO p.AdY a1eq 1uaplou| #9sed

109lqns adAL paubissy 10 axelu|




Attachment 6

papunojun (€ 19n87) @2104 Jo @SN "2
paurelsns Jurejdwo) e Jajay 0 1daddy o) ainjieq ‘T T 49O 108[QNS  02/92/E oc/a/e 6T/L2/E  9EE0-6T NN
paureisns (ay¥ad) Aina jo souewiolad "TT 8 4990 193lqns
pajesauox3 (¥ 19n87) 82104 J0 @SN "0T  Z 482110 103lgns
pajesauox3 (F [19n87) @2104 J0 @SN ‘6 9 49210 103lgns
parelsauox3 (F [9n87) @2104 J0 @SN '8 G 19O 103lgns
palesauox3y (7 19no7) @a104 J0 @SN L ¥ 19210 199Igns
sanljiqisuodsay
pauleIsns pue Auoyiny s1adiyo buipuewwod -9 € 19240 alans
paurelsns [eJjauas — AINQ Jo aduewlopad g
sanljiqisuodsay
pejelatioxs pue Aluoyiny siosiniedng
paureisns (T 19A87) 82104 J0 BSN "€ 2 48210 108lgns
paureisns (T 1I9n87) @2104 Jo @SN "2
paureisns (z 19ne7) @2lo4jo 8sn T T 4220 03lANS  0Z/9T/¥ 0¢/8T/E OT/LTlv  91v0-61 NV
Butpuiy uoneba|ly 199140 :%mﬂﬂ co_uwumﬁm_coo Ewuw_m_c_ #9SED cwrwﬂm,q

(6T = pagjdwo) [e1o])

TT jo T abed
02/9T/v

suonebnsanu| pais|dwo) Ajusday

AONIOV MIIATYH 30170d ALINNININOD

ANVTIMVO 40 ALID

(s101eBnS9AUI YD Ag paIanoasIp alam pjog ul suoneba||y)




Attachment 6

pajelauoxy (g 19n87) @2104 Jo @SN /. 1820 108lgns

pajelauoxy (€ 19n87) @2104 Jo @SN 9 € 182 O 18lgns

paelauoxy (€ 19n87) @2104 Jo @SN 'S

paelauoxy (g 19n87) @2104 Jo @SN ¥ Z 1820 1walgns

paelauoxy (€ 19n87) @2104 Jo @SN '€

parelauox3 (g 19n87) 22104 J0 @SN 2

paurelsns (adad) Ang jo dduewlopsd ‘T T 920 03lANS  02/8T/Y 0¢/8T/C 6T/0C/y  22v0-6T Sr
papunojun (resoua) Ain@ Jo aouewlIOdd '8

papunojun 92104 joasn L

papunojun (€ 1I9n87) 82104 Jo 8sn "9 € 1921 18lgns

paureisnsg rejdwo) e 1gjay Jo 1daddy o1 ainjred G g J921o 199lgns

palelauox3 (BuinopueH) AInQ Jo aduewload ‘v

papunojun 92104 Joasn '€

Butpuid uoneba|ly 199140 :%mﬂﬂ co_uwumﬁm_coo Ewuw_m_c_ #9SeD cwrwﬂm,q

(6T = pagjdwo) [e1o])

TT J0 ¢ abed
02/9T/v

(s101eBnS9AUI YD Ag paIanoasIp alam pjog ul suoneba||y)

suonebnsanu| pais|dwo) Ajusday

AONIOV MIIATYH 30170d ALINNININOD
ANVTIMVO 40 ALID




Attachment 6

dOI ON uoire|olA HOW ON/Aing ON  'T 1321JO ON 0c/eel8 0c¢/9/e 6T/€C/8  S6CT-6T ao
paleIBUOXT 1Sally 10 ainzias yoteas Jadoidw .
/reuonualuiun — AiNQ Jo asueWIONdd ‘6
uoneulwLosSIg pue
pspunojun .
juswisseleH — s1ayiQ pJemo] 1onpuo)d g
50UNOLU 1Sally 10 ainzias yoteas Jadoudw 1591 salan
Papunojun /reuonualuiun — s1ayiQ pJemol 1onpuo)d /. € 1990 19ans
D1EIBUOXT 1Sally 10 ainzias yoJseas Jadoidw| .
/reuonuajuiun — AINQ Jo asuewIONad ‘9
uoneulwlIsIg pue
pspunojun :
JuswWISseleH — SIayiQ pJemo] 1onpuo)d °q
apunojun uoheullldsIg pue 1221110 103lgn
papunol JuswisseleH — sIsylQ pJemoy] 1onpuo)d ‘v ¢ 19240 1ans
DSIEIOUOXT 1Sally 10 ainzias yoteas Jadoudw .
/reuonualuiun — AiNQ Jo asuewloNdd 'S
uoneulwLasSIg pue
pspunojun .
juswisseleH — s1ayiQ pJemo] 1onpuo)d ‘g
apunoju UONEUILLLIDSIQ pue 12010 109lgn -
pspunojun JUSWSSEIeH — SI8YI0 P/emo] 19Npuoy T T 192JJO 13lgNS  0¢/Se/TT oc/s/e 6T/LC/TT TEET-6T an
papunojun Ain@ uo Aianoy pauqiyoild g
dOIN ON uoire|oiA HOW ON/AINQ ON "T T 1920 109lans  02/9/21 oc/s/e 6T/L/CT  6.LET-6T an
pajelauox3 (e 19n87) @2104 Jo BSN '8 G 18O 1038lgns
[eob areq areq AU
Butpuiy uoneba|ly 199140 J1edA-T uonajdwo) 1uaplouj #9SED paubissy

(6T = pagjdwo) [e1o])

TT J0 € abed
02/9T/v

(s101eBnS9AUI YD Ag paIanoasIp alam pjog ul suoneba||y)

suonebnsanu| pais|dwo) Ajusday

AONIOV MIIATYH 30170d ALINNININOD
ANVTIMVO 40 ALID




Attachment 6

papunojun [elauas) — AiNQ Jo aduewIoNad ‘S 2 48210 1098lgns
papunojun Joueawa — SIdaY10 pJemo] 1onpuo)d ‘g
papunojun [e;aua — AinQ jo douewlopdad ‘T T 1920 108lANS 02/22/TT 0c/ETIE 6T/VC/TT 6TET-6T NY
1800 Ajnuap . 610¢
019 uonejoiA HOW ON/AINQ ON 'T 132140 Umouyun  0Z/TE/0T oc/etie sared 9¢¢T-6T ao
lgeun snoLe
leA
pajelauoxg Auadold Jo are) — AinQ Jo aduewWIONad ‘0T
parelauox3 BuignopueH — AINQ Jo soueWIONdd ‘6 Z 19210 103lgns
o1RIoUOX 1Sally 10 ainzias yoseas Jadoidw|
P 3 /reuonuaiuiun — AinQ Jo aduewlopad 8
papunojun ?dlo4 Joasn ‘L
pajelauoxg  Auadold Jo aie)d - AinQ Jo adurewlioled ‘9
papunojun BuiynopueH — AINQ Jo asueWIONdd °G
SIEI5LOX 1Sally 10 ainzias yoseas Jadoudw 1591 solan
bol 3 /reuonualuiun — AINQ Jo ssuewloNdd v 1 1990 19ans
dOIN ON uoire|olA HOW ON/AINnQ ON '€
dOIN ON uoire|olA HOW ON/AINng oN "2
[eob areq areq AU
Butpuiy uoneba|ly 199140 J1edA-T uonajdwo) 1uaplouj #9SED paubissy
(6T = pa1vjdwo) e10l) (s101eBnS9AUI YD Ag paIanoasIp alam pjog ul suoneba||y)
1T J0 ¥ abeyd suonebnsanu| pais|dwo) Ajusday
02/91/v AONIADOV MIIATY F01T10d ALINNINWOD

ANVTIMVO 40 ALID




Attachment 6

papunojun 92104 Jo9sN 'G
palelauox3 [elauas) — AINQ Jo aduewIONdd ‘v ¢ 49210 109lgns
palelauox3 [elauas) — AINQ Jo aduewIONdd ‘S T 49210 109lgns
papunojun [elauas) — AinQ JO aduewWIONdd °Z
wireldwo)d :
90INIBS urejdwo) dDIABS T J9O umouNun  0Z/ST/0T oc/sel/e 6T/LT/OT 6STT-6T NY
uoneuIwLIosSIg pue
pspunojun .
JuswisseleH — SIaylQ pJemo] 1onpuo)d 9
S1EI5LOX 1Sally 10 ainzias yoteas Jadoudw 1591 solan
baY 3 /reuonualuiun — AINQ Jo ssueWIONdd °G ¢ 1990 19aNS
loueawapsiN
papunojun .
snouas/Auoja4 — smeT 0] adualpagO v
papUNOILN 1Sally 10 ainzias yoseas Jadoudw .
/reuonualuiun — AiNQ Jo asuewWIoNdd 'S
DOTEIAUOXT 1Sally 10 ainzias yoteas Jadoidw| .
/reuonualuiun — AInQ Jo aduewlopad ‘¢
apunoju uonheulWLRSIq pue JER] 29lgn -
papunojun JUSWSSEIeH — SI8YI0 P/emo] 19Npuoy T T 182140 193lgns  0¢2/6¢2/01 0c¢/LT/e 6T/TE/OT 80CT-6T ao
pspunojun uonejoIA YOW ON/AINQ ON "T 4820 umouun  02/8/1T oc/eT/e 6T/0T/TT ¥9¢T-6T aon
papunojun Joueawa — SIBYIO pJemo] 10npuo)d v
[eob areq areq AU
Butpuiy uoneba|ly 199140 J1edA-T uonajdwo) 1uaplouj #9SED paubissy

(6T = pagjdwo) [e1o])

TT J0 G abed
02/9T/v

suonebnsanu| pais|dwo) Ajusday

AONIOV MIIATYH 30170d ALINNININOD
ANVTIMVO 40 ALID

(s101eBnS9AUI YD Ag paIanoasIp alam pjog ul suoneba||y)




Attachment 6

paresauox3 [esaua — AInQ Jo aduewlopad "8T 2T 49210 199lgns

paresauox3 [esaua — AInQ Jo sduewlopad "1 TT 49210 199lgns

paresauox3 [esaua9) — AInp JO souewlopad ‘9T 0T 49910 193lgns

paresauox3 [esaua — AInQ Jo aduewlopad 'ST 6 49210 1998lgns

paresauox3 [esaua — AInQ Jo aduewlopad 'vT 8 19O 199lgns

papunojun 92104 J0 8SN ‘€T

parelsauox3 [esauas) — AInQ Jo asuewlopsd 2T/ 19210 103lgns

parelsauox3 [esauas) — AInQ Jo asuewlopsd "TT 9 49210 103lgns

parelauox3 [esauas) — AINQ Jo aouewlopad ‘0T G 49910 199lgns

palelauox3 BuignopueH — AINQ Jo ssueWIONdd 6

papunojun 92104 J0 @SN '8 ¥ 49210 18lgns

paresauox3 [esaua — AInQ Jo aduewlopad ‘L € 19O 198lgns

paresauox3 BuiynopueH — AinQ jJo aouewlopad 9

Butpuid uoneba|ly 199140 :%mﬂﬂ co:wmummhoo Ewaw_m:_ #9589 cm..hw,_mm,q

(6T = pa1vjdwo) e10l) (s1orebnsanul YadD Aq paianodsip a1om pjog ul suonehs)|y)
1T 40 9 abed suonebnsanu| pais|dwo) Ajusday
02/91/v AJDNIOV M3IINTFH 3D110d ALINNINWOD

ANVTIMVO 40 ALID




Attachment 6

uoneuIwLdsIqg pue

papunojun JUSWSSEJeH — SIBUYI0 P/emo] 19Npuoy T T 1920 103lans  0Z/0T/TT 0c¢/9/v 6T/CT/TT €9CT-6T ao
papunojun 92l04 Jo8sn g
apunojun uoheullldsIa pue 1221110 103lgn
papunoy JuswisseleH — s1aylQ pJemo] 1onpuo)d ‘v ¢ 1920 13ans
D1EIBUOXT 1Sally 10 ainzias yoseas Jadoidw .
/reuonualuiun — AINQ Jo ssueWIONdd 'S
papunojun 92l04 Joasn ‘¢
apunoju UONEUILLLIDSIQ pue 1301 o9lgn -
papunojun JUSWSSEIeH — SI8YI0 P/emo] 1oNpuoy ‘T T 1900 1938lans  0¢/LT/CT oc/elv 6T/6T/CT 0CVT-6T an
papunojun 92lo4 Jo asn ¥
o1RIoUOX 1Sally 10 ainzias yoseas Jadoidw| 19910 108lan
P 3 /reuonuajuiun — AINQ Jo asuewIONdd 'S ¢ 19240 1ans
papunojun 92l04 Jo9sn ‘¢
S1EI5LOX 1Sally 10 ainzias yoseas Jadoidw 1591 solan i
pay 3 /reuonuUBIUIUN — AINQ 10 @oUeWIOpad T T 190JO 1938lans  0¢/9/¢T ocrelv 6T/L/CT  CLET-6T an
papunojun 92l04j09sn ‘T T J9oYo 108lgns  0z/E/2T 0c/tiy 6T/S/CT  C9ET-6T NA
pajelauox3 BuiynopueH — AINQ J0 asueWIONBd "0Z
papunojun 92104 JO 8sN ‘6T
[eob areq areq AU
Butpuiy uoneba|ly 199140 J1edA-T uonajdwo) 1uaplouj #9SED paubissy

(6T = pagjdwo) [e1o])

TT J0 /. abed
02/9T/v

(s101eBnS9AUI YD Ag paIanoasIp alam pjog ul suoneba||y)

suonebnsanu| pais|dwo) Ajusday

AONIOV MIIATYH 30170d ALINNININOD
ANVTIMVO 40 ALID




Attachment 6

1Sally 10 ainzias yoJteas Jadoidw

pajelauox3 /lreuonuajuiun — AINQ Jo asueWIONad € 19940 1090ans
papunojun 92104 JO asn
papunojun 92104 JO asn
palelauox3 BuiynopueH — AinQ Jo ssueWIONad
oRIOUOX 1Sally 10 ainzias ‘yoseas Jadoidw| 199110 108lan
b 3 /reuonuajuiun — AiNQ Jo ssueWIONad ¢ 19240 1291ans
S1EI5LOX 1Sally 10 aInzias ‘yoseas Jadoidw 1591 salan
Pol 3 /reuonualuiun — AINQ Jo ssueWIONad 1 1990 1991ans
UOREOIA uone|oiA 4OIN ON/AIng ON
JOIN ON o
uole|oIn
SO ON uonejoIA 4O ON/Aing oN 1301JO umoufun  0¢/vIcT 0c/9/v 6T/S/CT  99€T-6T ao
papunojun [elauas — AinQg Jo aouewWIoydd
apunoju UoNEULLLdSIQ pue 1801 2algn
papunojun juswisseleH — s1ayiQ pJemo] 1onpuod € 1920 1231ans
papunojun [elauas) — AINQ JO aduewWIOLISd
apunoju uoheulldsig pue 1221140 108lgn
Papunojun juswisseleH — sIsyiQ pJemo] 1onpuod ¢ 1920 191ans
papunojun [elauas) — AInQ Jo aduewIoad
[eob areq areq AU
Butpuiy uoneba|ly 199140 J1edA-T uonajdwo) 1uaplouj #9SED paubissy

(s101eBnS9AUI YD Ag paIanoasIp alam pjog ul suoneba||y)
suonebnsanu| pais|dwo) Ajusday
AONIADOV MIIATY F01T10d ALINNINWOD
ANVTIHVO 4O ALID

(6T = pagjdwo) [e1o])
TT J0 8 abed
0Z/9T/¥




Attachment 6

pajelauoxy [eJjauas — AInQ Jo aouewlopad '8
pajelauoxy [eJjaua — AINQ Jo dduewlopad /. € 19910 199lgns
(reuonuayuiun)

pepunojun wreldwo) e Jayay 40 1daddy 0} ainjieq ‘9 ¢ 19240 alans
paelauoxy [eJjauas — AInQ Jo aduewlopad g
papunojun [eJjauas — AINQ Jo dduewlopad v T 49910 109lgns
parelauox3 uone|oIA YOW ON/Aing od '€

JONSION uonejoIA YO ON/AIN@ ON  'Z

dOIWN ON

uone|oIA :

HOW ON uonejoiA HOW ON/AIN@ ON "T 19210 umousiun  0z/8/0T oc/sTly 6T/6/0T v11-61 ao
papunojun 92104 j09sn Z
psjelsuox3y [e1oud9 — AINQ Jo dduBWIOLSd ‘T  J9WO UMouNunN  0Z/E/T 0c/0T/¥ 0¢/S/T 97T00-0¢ an
papunojun 92104 J0 8SN 'TT
papunojun 92104 JO 8sN 0T
paelauoxy BuiynopueH — AInQ jo aduewlopad ‘6

Butpuiy uoneba|ly 199140 :%mﬂﬂ co_uwumﬁm_coo EMHW_M_:_ #9SED cwrwﬂm,q

(6T = pagjdwo) [e1o])

TT J0 6 abed
02/9T/v

suonebnsanu| pais|dwo) Ajusday

AONIOV MIIATYH 30170d ALINNININOD

ANVTIMVO 40 ALID

(s101eBnS9AUI YD Ag paIanoasIp alam pjog ul suoneba||y)




Attachment 6

‘pIa1y ay1 ul (Jesauab ui uoddns are pue) uoddns Jiy

dHD 9Z111IN pue YlIM 81e21UNWWOod A[9AI934J8 01 MOY UO Bulurel) aAIgdal siaquisl ado [[e 12yl Spuswwodal ydD ayl

"SJUBPIdUI BuLINp SuJaduod A1ajes

1301440 [enua10d pue UOISNJUOI PIOAR 01 aNssI 1Y) U0 Bulures aA19931 S18911J0 AdO |[e 1eyl SPUsIWOa) W dD ayL

"SUOIY3IIP puUBPRO

UIA Jeljiwey aq Jou Aew oym Salousbe apiIsino woJy siun yim Buiediunwod usym Ajjeroadss ‘sbed swes ay) uo
aq 01 pue pasn Bulag sI ssedwod YaIym AjLre|d 01 papulwal ag PINoYS $1391JJ0 ‘SUOIIIAIIP PUBeO PUR SUOIJ3Ip anJl
uaamiaq Aouedalasip anbiun ayl 01 an@ ‘salouabe apisino Aq pasn asoyl 01 puodsallod 10U Op eyl SUOIJBJIP [eulpsed
10a4100ul Ajjeaiydelbolied sasn AjLiewol1snd puepeQ Jo AlID ayl YdIym ul SUOIeN]IS [ea119€] paljiiuapl sey HdD ayl

*3]q1ssod uaym spuapiaul ssaas ybiy burinp 1a4diaiul 01

siayeads abenbue aAneN palyiIe) Ado buizijnn pue Bunsanbai Jo souenodwi syl ssaas pinoys Buluresy Josiniadng

*3U3JS U0 S19214J0 0] Yaeq paAe|al sI ysijbu3 ueyl Jayio

abenBue| e ul (s)uosiad e WoJ) pauleIqo uoljewlojul |[e ains Bujew se ||am se ‘abenbue| Aue ul ‘SpuBLIWOd 3SIUO0I
pue Jea|d BulAIb Jo adueni0dwi ay) usea] pjnoys siaquiaw ado ‘Burureny yans Burnp eyl Spuswiwodal vHdD ayl

'SOlIeUads Bulurel) Jejnfas ul siorejsue.y/siaraldiaiul Jo asn ayl ajeibajul weiboid aulueD ayl eyl pue ‘plaly ayl ul
sloyejsue.y/sialaldiaul Buizijnn uo siaquwaw do |Je 01 Bulures; apinoid Juswiiedaq ayl 18yl SPUBWILINIAL WYHdD ayL

'S1SalJe pue suonualep Bulnp pue S19vIU0D UZNID Buneniul usym (sqydd) (s)uonepuswwoday

$901A8Q Bu1pI009y [eNBIQ [RUOSISd J18Y] B1BAIITR ISNW SI314J0 Tey) Bululel) [euonippe spusLIWodal e dD 8yl Buiures )

110day siyy ul suonebinsanu] 01 199dsay Ylim suoiepuawwoday buiurel] Buimo||o) ayl apeiN vadd)D

paureIsns 10N

92104 Jo @SN 'z Z 4920 109lgns

paureIsns 10N

92104 J0 8sn T T I9YO P1B(ANS  02/82/TT 0c/ST/v 6T/0E/TT  LEET-6T as

Buipui4

(6T = parg|dwo) [e10])
TT 40 0T abed
02/9T/v

[eob areq areq ose AU
Em\A-H co:m_anoEmc_oc_ # o) cmcm_mm<

uolreba||v 192140
(s101eBnS9AUI YD Ag paIanoasIp alam pjog ul suoneba||y)
suonebnsanu| pais|dwo) Ajusday
AONIADOV MIIATY F01T10d ALINNINWOD
ANVTIHVO 4O ALID




Attachment 6

*18]UN0JUd 8y} Jo porsad eanuId e Bulinp 10adsns painlul ue 01 1@nbiuino) e Ajdde 03 uoISIdap SIY AJJea14198ds ‘JUapIdUl UB  (S)uolepuUBWIW0IaY
BurInp suo1lINqIIUOD pIe [eJ1PAW pUR [BINIIE) SIY 10} Uo11uboIaI 9AIISOd 8AIB98 183140 SUO Jey) PAapUBILIOIBI WHdD YL uoirepuswwo)

1oday siyl ul suonebinsaaul 01 198dsay YlIM SUOITEPUSWLIOIdY Uolepuawwo) Buimo||o) ayl apeiN vadDd

"9SaUJ) Se YINs SJuspIodul Ul S1391JJ0 0] A111ed apIAoid pjnom ‘sased T |[aAsT] pue g [aA8] U10g J0) BLISILID

ay) Ag Pamo||0J ‘BAOCR 0 Z [9A3T] B 1Se3] Je a( [[eys 11q aulued e Jey a1ealpul 0] Aaijod ay1 Buepdn 8210} JO asn g [anaT]

e Ajealjewolne si aliq aulued e Jey) uondwnsaid ay) Buireuiwije SpUsWIWodal W dD ayr ‘Ainful AjIpoq a1aAas asned 0}

$911( auIuRd 10} Jenuslod ayl 01 an@ "89.10J JO $asN g |9A87] Sk $allqg aulued aziiobared Ajpandwnsald -3 09QA pue -3 09d

‘sa19110d y1oq ui Aunfur Ajipog snouas
JO uonIuap JUBSISU0I e uodn Ajai Ajqeuoseal Aew S19214J0 1eyl 0S PajIou0dal 8q £-M 09A PUe -H 09A 1Yl SpuswLIodsl
VddO YL “ApuaIdip yeymowos  Amlfuy AJipog snoLIdg,, aUlydp -3 09A pue £-M 09 Fey} paIsnodsip YddO ayL

(s)uonepuawwoday
Adnjod

110day sIy1 ul suonebinsanu| 01 19adsay Ylim suolepuawwoday Ad1jod Buimo||o) ayl apeiN vad)d

(6T = pa1vjdwo) e10l) (s101eBnS9AUI YD Ag paIanoasIp alam pjog ul suoneba||y)
TT JO 1T abed suonebnsanu| palsjdwod Apusday
0C/9TI¥ AONIADOV MIIATY F01T10d ALINNINWOD

ANVTIMVO 40 ALID




Attachment 9

N

CITY OF OAKLAND [

CITY HALL o 1 FRANK H. OGAWA PLAZA ¢ OAKLAND, CALIFORNIA 94612

Police Commission

January 9, 2020
Re: Neighborhood Opportunity and Accountability Board Youth Diversion Project
Dear Community Stakeholder,

The Oakland Police Commission wholeheartedly supports the Neighborhood Opportunity and
Accountability Board (NOAB)’s youth diversion project through the National Institute for
Criminal Justice Reform.

Diversion programs redirect youth offenders from the criminal justice system through the
provision of support, supervision, and programming. Similarly, NOAB’s diversion program will
divert youth who have committed minor offenses away from the system and towards
community-based treatment and support options instead of confinement. NOAB’s program will
be far more effective in addressing and preventing future delinquency than the traditional
criminal justice system.

Additionally, NOAB’s diversion program will keep youth from being “formally processed” in
the criminal justice system. Such processing perpetuates delinquency by “labeling” youth
offenders and exposing them to circumstances within juvenile and adult correctional institutions
that may actually increase recidivism.

Lastly, NOAB’s program is designed to be less costly than formal court proceedings by reducing
the burden on the court system, reducing the caseload of juvenile probation officers, and freeing
up those limited resources and services for high-risk juvenile offenders.

NOAB’s youth diversion project is also supported by the Oakland Police Department and seeks
to work with Alameda County Probation Office and the Alameda County District Attorney’s
Office. We look forward to having you collaborate with us on this program as well.

If you have any questions, please do not hesitate to contact me at
RJackson@QOaklandCommission.org or David Muhammad, Executive Director of the National
Institute for Criminal Justice Reform, at David@NICJR.org. Thank you in advance for your
support.

Very truly yours,

Regina Jackson
Chair, Oakland Police Commission



Attachment 9

CITY or OAKLAND

POLICE ADMINISTRATION BUILDING o 455 - 7TH STREET . OAKLAND, CALIFORNIA 94607-3985

Police Department Telephone Device for the Deaf (510) 238-3227

January 24, 2020

To whom it may concern:

It is my pleasure to write this letter on behalf of the Oakland Police Department’s (OPD)
continued support for the youth diversion initiative, Neighborhood Opportunity and
Accountability Board (NOAB).

As stated in the letter sent in 2018, the NOAB is a diversion from formal processing occurring
within the juvenile justice system. Instead of being referred for detention and prosecution, certain
youth suspected of delinquent behavior will be sent to neighborhood councils. This involves a
group of community leaders, business owners, youth, and family members who will work with
the young person, their family and any victim to develop a restorative plan to effectively address
the delinquent act and improve the community.

The Oakland Police Department believes the National Institute for Criminal Justice Reform
(NICJR), is a successful organization which is a cross-section of community leaders and service
providers, who have been designing and planning this initiative for many years in Qakland. The
Oakland Police Department has been at the table with these community members and continues
to serve on the steering committee. The Oakland Police Department continues to believe in
NOAB’s responsible diversion and will support the organization's success.

When implemented effectively, the Neighborhood Opportunity and Accountability Board can
improve youth outcomes, develop communities, and increase public safety. OPD agrees to
partner with NOAB, including the training of Officers and having our juvenile intake division
refer youth to the initiative. OPD looks forward to working with NOAB, and we highly
recommend and encourage funding to support this strategy’s success.

Sincerelys

Anne E. Kirkpatrick
Chief of Police
Oakland Police Department

Cc: Chair Jackson, Police Commission
Cc: Vice Chair Harris, Police Commission



Attachment 9

DRAFT MOU (NOAB and OPD)

THIS MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING (MOU) is entered into as of
date, by and between the City of Oakland, a municipal corporation and
charter city (City), by and through its Police Department (OPD) and the
National Institute for Criminal Justice Reform (NICJR), a California nonprofit
organization, to establish an effective partnership committed to the successful
implementation of the Neighborhood Opportunity and Accountability Board
Diversion Program (NOAB).

Section 1. Purpose and Intent

The purpose and intent of this MOU is to establish an effective partnership
committed to identifying Oakland youth who will benefit from alternatives
to formal processing in the juvenile justice system when accused of
delinquent behaviors. NOAB will provide comprehensive intervention
services, which will seek to reduce youth delinquency, build community
cohesion, decrease justice system costs, and improve police-community
relations. Through case management, mentorship, support services,
restorative justice, Cognitive Behavioral Therapy, health and wellness
support, NICJR and its partners will seek to reduce recidivism rates while
increasing public safety and positive youth development. The parties will
work together to develop intervention policies and actions for youth
participant's continued participation and success in NOAB.

Section 2. Scope of Work

The Oakland Police Department agrees to do the following:

A. Allow staff and officers to be trained by NOAB partners, including
OPD leadership, to handle contacts involving youth that may lead
to referrals to NOAB:;

B. Conduct a preliminary screening of youth identified by detectives
or other OPD staff to determine if they are eligible for the NOAB;

C. Directly contact or refer to NOAB staff to contact the youth's
parent/guardian and inform them of the youth's eligibility for
the NOAB, as well as the benefits of participating;

D. Formally refer the youth and their parents/guardian to the NOAB so
the youth can participate;

E. Seal the participant's OPD record and apply California Penal
Code section 849, upon successful completion of NOAB, which will
deem the initial contact as a detention so long as the criteria of

Penal Code section 849 are met;
F. Work with NOAB on an annual evaluation.

NICJR agrees to do the following:
A. Collaborate with OPD to implement the NOAB;
B. Provide training to OPD personnel on the NOAB;
C. Facilitate and manage the NOAB;
D. Designate necessary staff and resources to ensure an effective program;
E.

Provide the highest level of legally permissible transparent decision
making and communication between NOAB and OPD personnel,



Attachment 9

with acknowledgement of and adherence to the confidentiality and
privacy requirements under the law related to juvenile records and
information;

F. Provide OPD with the information needed to effectively evaluate the
NOAB, including a curriculum overview, participant/guardian
satisfaction; and

G. Provide in-kind support, for as long as is functionally possible, for the
implementation of the NOAB.

Section 3. Term

This MOU is for the period date through date, and thereafter this MOU shall be null
and void and of no further force or effect, except as to those provisions which state they
expressly survive the termination of this MOU. This term may be extended based upon
written mutual agreement executed by both parties.

Section 4. Compliance with Laws and Regulations

The NICJR shall comply with all federal, state and local laws, statutes, ordinances, rules
and regulations, and the orders and decrees of any courts or administrative bodies or
tribunals, with respect to this MOU, including the California Penal Code, disability
laws, including the Americans with Disability Act, employment discrimination laws
and prevailing wage laws. Compliance under this provision includes compliance with
all City of Oakland contracting laws, programs and policies such as, but not limited to,
living wage, prevailing wages, equal benefits, local and small local business enterprise
and nondiscrimination.

Section 5. Indemnification

A. OPD agrees to hold harmless, indemnify, and defend NICJR from all claims or
losses accruing or resulting from injury, damage, or death of any person, firm, or
corporation in connection with the performance of this MOU. OPD agrees to
hold harmless, indemnify, and defend NICJR employees from any and all
claims or losses incurred by any supplier, contractor, or subcontractor
furnishing work, services, or materials to OPD in connection with the
performance of this MOU.

B. NICJR agrees to hold harmless, indemnify, and defend City and
OPD from all claims or losses accruing or resulting from injury,
damage, or death of any person, firm, or corporation in connection
with the performance of this MOU. NICJR agrees to hold harmless,
indemnify, and defend City and OPD employees from any and all
claims or losses incurred by any supplier, contractor, or
subcontractor furnishing work, services, or materials to NICJR in
connection with the performance of this MOU.

C. Innoevent shall any indemnity under this Section 5 apply to claims or
losses which are attributable to the sole negligence or willful
misconduct of an indemnitee or its agents, servants or independent
contractors who are directly responsible to such indemnitee. If the
claims or losses are attributable to any joint or concurrent negligent act
(either active or passive) or an omission by an indemnitee, the
indemnitor shall indemnify, hold harmless and defend such



Attachment 9

indemnitee from such claims or losses only to the extent such claims or
losses arise out of or result from the negligence or willful misconduct
of indemnitor, or anyone directly or indirectly employed by such

indemnitor, or anyone for whose acts they may be responsible or
liable.

The provisions of this Section 5 shall survive the termination or expiration of this MOU.
Section 6. Limitations

Nothing in this MOU shall make either party’s employees: (a) subject to any of the
memoranda of understanding that apply to employees of the other party; (b) subject to the
Personnel Rules that apply to employees of the other party; (c) subject to any of the benefits
received by employees of the other party, including but not limited to, Medical, Dental,
Vision, Retirement, Vacation Sick Leave, and Administrative Leave; (d) covered by the other
party’s Worker's Compensation Insurance; or (e) employees of the other party for any
purpose, including, but not limited to, the Tort Claims Act (Cal. Gov't. Code Section 825 et

seq.).
Section 7. Termination

NICJR and OPD enter into this MOU in the spirit of collaboration in order
to ensure optimal alternatives to juvenile justice system involvement for
Oakland youth. The Parties will work to resolve any problems or concerns
that arise during the course of this MOU and which impede the terms of
this MOU. Notwithstanding, either Party may terminate this MOU for any
reason whatsoever upon sixty (60) days written notice to the other of such
termination.

Section 8. Litigation

This MOU shall be performed in Oakland, CA and is governed by the laws of the State
of California. Any action relating to this MOU shall be instituted and prosecuted in the
courts of Alameda County, California.

Section 9. Relationship of Parties

Nothing contained in this MOU shall be interpreted or understood by any of the parties,
or by any third persons, as creating the relationship of employer and employee, joint
employers, principal and agent, limited or general partnership, or joint venture by and
between City or OPD and NICJR or its agents, employees, contractors, or
subcontractors, and NICJR shall at all times be deemed an independent contractor and
shall be wholly responsible for the manner in which it or its employees, agents, or both,
perform the services required of it by the terms of this MOU.

Section 10. No Claims

Nothing contained in this MOU shall create or justify any claim against City or
OPD by any person that NICJR may have employed or with whom NICJR may
have contracted relative to the purchase of materials, supplies or equipment, or
the furnishing or the performance of any work or services.

Section 11. Amendments



Attachment 9

No alteration or variation of the terms of this MOU shall be valid unless made
in writing and executed by the parties.

Section 12. Non-Liability of City Officials, Employees and Agents

No member, official, employee or agent of the City or OPD shall be personally
liable to NICJR in the event of any default or breach by City or OPD or for any
amount which may become due to NICJR or its successor or on any obligation
under the terms of this MOU.

Section 13. No Third-Party Beneficiaries

There shall be no third-party beneficiaries to this MOU.

Section 14. Conflict of Interest

A. Except for approved eligible administrative or personnel costs, no
person described in Section 14.B below who exercises or has exercised
any functions or responsibilities with respect to the activities necessary
to carry out this MOU or who is in a position to participate in a decision-
making process or gain inside information with regard to such activities,
may obtain a personal or financial interest or benefit from the activity,
or have aninterest in any contract, subcontract or agreement with respect
thereto, or the proceeds thereunder, either for themselves or those with
whom they have family or business ties, during, or at any time after,
such person's tenure. NICJR shall exercise due diligence to ensure that
the prohibition in this Section 14.A is followed.

B. The conflict of interest provisions of Section 14.A above apply to any
person who is an employee, agent, consultant, officer, or any immediate
family member of such person, or any elected or appointed official of
City, or any person related within the third (3rd) degree of such person.

Section 15. Notices, Demands and Communications

If at any time after the execution of this MOU it shall become necessary or
convenient for one of the parties hereto to serve any notice, demand or
communication upon the other party, such notice, demand or communication
shall be in writing and shall be served personally or by depositing the same in
the registered United States mail, return receipt requested, postage prepaid or
delivered by express delivery serviceand,

A. Mail intended for OPD shall be addressed to:

Oakland Police Department

455 7th Street
Oakland, California 94607

B. Mail intended for NICJR shall be addressed to:

National Institute for Criminal Justice Reform
303 Hegenberger Road, Suite 301

Oakland, CA 94621

Attention: Executive Director



Attachment 9

Any notice, demand or communication shall be deemed given, received, made
or communicated on the date personal delivery is affected or, if mailed in the
manner herein specified, on the delivery date or date delivery is refused by the
addressee, as shown on the return receipt. Any party may change its address at
any time by giving written notice of such change at least ten (10) days prior to the
date such change is desired to be effective.

Section 16. Waivers

Any waiver by OPD of any obligation or condition in this MOU must be in
writing. No waiver will be implied from any delay or failure by OPD to take
action on any breach or default of NICJR or to pursue any remedy allowed
under this MOU or applicable law. Any extension of time granted to NICJR to
perform any obligation under this MOU shall not operate as a waiver or release
from any of its obligations under this MOU. Consent by OPD to any act or
omission by NICJR shall not be construed to be consent to any other or
subsequent act or omission or to waive the requirement for OPD's written
consent to waivers.

Section 17. Entire Understanding of the Parties

This MOU constitutes the entire understanding and agreement of the parties
with respect to the services to be provided hereunder.

Section 18. Multiple Originals; Counterpart

This MOU may be executed in multiple originals, each of which is deemed to
be an original, and may be signed in counterparts.

IN WTINESS WHEREQF, the parties hereto have executed this MOU as of the day and
year
first written above.

Insert signature line



(‘X

CITY oF OAKLAND

Attachment 13

OAKLAND POLICE COMMISSION

SPECIAL MEETING MINUTES - DRAFT
April 9, 2020
5:30 PM

Call to Order
Chair Regina Jackson

The meeting started at 5:36 pm.

Roll Call and Determination of Quorum
Chair Regina Jackson

Commissioners Present: Tara Anderson, Henry Gage, lll, Ginale Harris, Regina Jackson,
Edwin Prather, and Thomas Lloyd Smith. Quorum was met.

Alternate Commissioners Present: Chris Brown and David Jordan (arrived during item V)
Commissioners Absent: José Dorado

Counsel for this meeting: Conor Kennedy and Nitasha Sawhney

Public Comment on Closed Session Items

No public comments were provided on this item.

The Commission adjourned to closed session. The open session section of the meeting commenced
at 6:31 pm.

V.

VI.

VII.

Closed Session
CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL— ANTICIPATED LITIGATION: 1 CASE - Govt. Code §
54956.9(d)(2)

Report out of Closed Session
CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL— ANTICIPATED LITIGATION: 1 CASE - Govt. Code §
54956.9(d)(2)

There were no reportable actions on this item.

Welcome, Purpose, and Open Forum/Public Comment
Comments were provided by the following public speakers:
Maureen Benson

Report from the Chair
Regina Jackson delivered a report on the current state of affairs amidst the COVID-19
healthy emergency.



Attachment 13

No public comments were provided on this item.
No action was taken on this item.

VIII. Update on City Auditor’s Commission and CPRA Audits
The Commission provided an update on the status of the Police Commission and CPRA
audits that are being conducted by the City Auditor’s office.

No public comments were provided on this item.
No action was taken on this item.
IX. Committee Reports (this item was tabled to a future agenda)

Comments were provided by the following public speakers:
John Lindsay-Poland

Anne Janks

Bruce Schmiechen

Lorelei Bosserman

A motion was made by Ginale Harris, seconded by Tara Anderson, to table this item to a
future agenda. The motion carried by the following vote:

Aye: Anderson, Harris, Jackson, Prather, and Smith
No: O
Abstain: Gage

X. Police Commission Annual Report
The Commission discussed the annual report that will be submitted to the Mayor, City
Council, and the public, and voted to approve the report with additions.

No public comments were provided on this item.

A motion was made by Tara Anderson, seconded by Thomas Lloyd Smith, to adopt the
report with the following additions: a list of Commissioners who joined the Commission in
2019, and a section on Community Outreach. The motion carried by the following vote:

Aye: Anderson, Gage, Jackson, Prather, and Smith
No: 0
Abstain: Harris

Xl. Strategic Communications Proposal

The Commission reviewed a proposal from Max Szabo of Szabo & Associates and
considered whether to proceed with a solicitation process.

4.9.20 Minutes Page 2



Xil.

Xill.

XIV.

Attachment 13

Comments were provided by the following public speakers:
Maureen Benson
John Lindsay-Poland

A motion was made by Edwin Prather, seconded by Thomas Lloyd Smith, to table this item
to a future agenda and created an Ad Hoc Committee to do more research on the need for
services. Tara Anderson recused herself from voting as she has previously worked with
Max Szabo. The motion carried by the following vote:

Aye: Gage, Harris, Jackson, Prather, and Smith
No: O
Abstain: Anderson

Meeting Minutes Approval
The Commission voted to approve minutes from March 12, 2020.

No public comments were provided on this item.

A motion was made by Henry Gage, Ill, seconded by Edwin Prather, to approve the March
12,2020 minutes. The motion carried by the following vote:

Aye: Anderson, Gage, Jackson, Prather, and Smith
No: O
Abstain: Harris

Agenda Setting and Prioritization of Upcoming Agenda Items

The Commission engaged in a working session to discuss and determine agenda items for
the upcoming Commission meeting: introduction of OPD Interim Chief; update on
Commission and CPRA audits; formation of a discipline committee; Bey case subpoenas;
CPRA report; update on Commission and CPRA budgets; and a draft Memorandum of
Understanding (MOU) between OPD and National Institute for Criminal Justice Reform
(NICJR).

Comments were provided by the following public speakers:
John Lindsay-Poland

No action was taken on this item.
Adjournment
A motion was made by Edwin Prather, seconded by Tara Anderson, to adjourn the

meeting at 8:11 pm. The motion carried by the following vote:

Aye: Anderson, Gage, Harris, Jackson, Prather, and Smith
No: 0

4.9.20 Minutes Page 3



Police Commission Pending Agenda Matters List

Attachment 14

A

B C D E F G H
Date Placed Priority Lead
Pending Agenda Matter on List Duties/Deliverables Additional Information/Details Level Timeline/Deadline | Scheduled | Commissioner(s), if
any
OPD to Provide a 30 Day On 2.2'7.2.0, at the? request of OPD the
Snapshot on the Effectiveness | 2/27/2020 Commission considered and approved SO High
of SO 9202 9202 which amends the section in SO 9196
regarding Type 32 reportable force
The following trainings must be done in Open
Session:
Complete trainings mandated by City |1. California's Meyers Milias Brown Act
Charter section 604 (c)(9) and Enabling |(MMBA) and Public Employment Relations
Ordinance section 2.45.190 Board's Administration of MMBA (done
3.12.20)
Some trainings have deadlines for when |2. Civil Service Board and Other Relevant City
Commissioner Trainings 1/1/2018 they should be completed (within 3 [Personnel Policies and Procedures (done High Ongoing

months, 6 months, etc.)

Several trainings were delivered in open
sesssion and have been recorded for
future use

2.27.20)

3. Memoranda of Understanding with Oakland
Police Officers Association and Other
Represented Employees (rescheduled due to
COVID-19 health emergency)

4. Police Officers Bill of Rights (done 12.12.19)

Page 1 of 13



Police Commission Pending Agenda Matters List

Attachment 14

A

B

D

E

G

H

Pending Agenda Matter

Date Placed
on List

Duties/Deliverables

Additional Information/Details

Priority
Level

Timeline/Deadline

Scheduled

Lead
Commissioner(s), if
any

Confirming the Process to Hire
Staff for the Office of Inspector
General

5/17/2019

Per the Enabling Ordinance: The City
shall allocate a sufficient budget for the
OIG to perform its functions and duties

as set forth in section 2.45.120,
including budgeting one (1) full-time
staff position comparable to the
position of Police Program and Audit
Supervisor. Within thirty (30) days after
the first Inspector General is hired, the
Policy Analyst position and funding then
budgeted to the Agency shall be
reallocated to the OIG. All OIG staff,
including the Inspector General, shall be
civil service employees in accordance
with Article IX of the City Charter.

This will require information presented from
the City Administrator's Office.

High

Page 2 of 13



Police Commission Pending Agenda Matters List

Attachment 14

A

B C D E F G H
- Lead
: Date Placed . . . . . Priority . . .. .
Pending Agenda Matter on List Duties/Deliverables Additional Information/Details Level Timeline/Deadline | Scheduled | Commissioner(s), if
any
Finalize Bylaws and Rules 1/24/2019 High Gage
Pending Measure LL revisions to be included in
Hire Inspector General (I1G) 1/14/2019 | Hire IG once the job is officially posted |the November 2020 ballot. Recruitment and High Personnel Committee
job posting in process.
The Commission will discuss and
provide feedback on the draft revision
. of Measure LL provided by the Coalition i
Measure LL Revisions 10/1/2019 . o High Gage
for Police Accountability to the
Commission and City Council President
Kaplan
The Chief's report shall include, at a minimum, the
following:
1. The number of complaints submitted to the
Department's Internal Affairs Division (IAD) together
with a brief description of the nature of the complaints;
2. The number of pending investigations in IAD, and the
types of Misconduct that are being investigated;
3. The number of investigations completed by IAD, and
the results of the investigations;
4. The number of training sessions provided to
Department sworn employees, and the subject matter
of the training sessions;
Notification of OPD Chief Commission must notify the Chief 5. Revisions made to Department policies; June 14, 2018 and
Regarding Requirements of 1/1/2018 regarding what information will be  [6. The number and location of Department sworn High June 14 of each Dorado

Annual Report

required in the Chief’s annual report

employee-involved shootings;

7. The number of Executive Force Review Board or
Force Review Board hearings and the results;

8. A summary of the Department's monthly Use of
Force Reports;

9. The number of Department sworn employees
disciplined and the level of discipline imposed; and

10. The number of closed investigations which did not
result in discipline of the Subject Officer.

The Chief's annual report shall not disclose any
information in violation of State and local law regarding
the confidentiality of personnel records, including but
not limited to California Penal Code section 832.7

subsequent year

Page 3 of 13




Attachment 14
Police Commission Pending Agenda Matters List

A B C D E F G H

Lead
Timeline/Deadline | Scheduled | Commissioner(s), if
any

Date Placed Priority

Pending Agenda Matter ) Duties/Deliverables Additional Information/Details
on List Level

The Commission must determine the
performance criteria for evaluating the Chief
and the Agency Director, and communicate
those criteria to the Chief and the Agency
Director one full year before conducting the
evaluation. The Commission may, in its
Performance Reviews of CPRA 1/1/2018 Conduct performance reviews of the discretion decide to solicit and consider, as
Director and OPD Chief Agency Director and the Chief part of its evaluation, comments and
observations from the City Administrator and
other City staff who are familiar with the
Agency Director’s or the Chiefs job
performance. Responses to the Commission’s
requests for comments and observations shall
be strictly voluntary.

Annually; Criteria for
High evaluation due 1 year
prior to review

Review of existing communication practices
and information sharing protocols between
Recommendations for departments, need recommendations from
Increasing Communication 10/6/2018 stakeholders about whether a policy is High
Between CPRA and IAD needed. Ensure prompt forwarding of
complaints from IAD to CPRA and prompt data
sharing.

Receive reports from OPD on issues such as:
response times; murder case closure rates;
hiring and discipline status report (general
number for public hearing); any comp stat High
data they are using; privacy issues; human
trafficking work; use of force stats;
homelessness issues; towing cars of people
who sleep in their vehicles

Commission to decide on what reports
are needed prior to receiving them.

Ongoing as

Reports from OPD 10/6/2018 -
appropriate

Page 4 of 13



Police Commission Pending Agenda Matters List

Attachment 14

A

B

D

E

G

H

Pending Agenda Matter

Date Placed
on List

Duties/Deliverables

Additional Information/Details

Priority
Level

Timeline/Deadline

Scheduled

Lead
Commissioner(s), if
any

12

Request City Attorney Reports

1/1/2018

Request the City Attorney submit semi-
annual reports to the Commission and
the City Council

Request the City Attorney submit semi-annual
reports to the Commission and City Council
which shall include a listing and summary of:
1. To the exent permitted by applicable law,
the discipline decisions that were appealed to
arbitration;

2. Arbitration decisions or other related
results;

3. The ways in which it has supported the
police discipline process; and

4. Significant recent developments in police
discipline.

The City Attorney's semi-annual reports shall
not disclose any information in violation of
State and local law regarding the
confidentiality of personnel records, including
but not limited to California Penal Code 832.7

High

Semi-annually

Smith

13

Offsite Meetings

1/1/2018

Meet in locations other than City Hall

The offsite meetings must include an agenda
item titled “Community Roundtable” or
something similar, and the Commission must
consider inviting individuals and groups
familiar with the issues involved in building
and maintaining trust between the community
and the Department.

Medium

Annually; at least
twice each year

6/25/20
10/8/20

Dorado, Harris,
Jackson

14

Annual Report

1/1/2018

Submit an annual report each year to
the Mayor, City Council and the public

Medium

Prather, Smith

Page 5 of 13



Police Commission Pending Agenda Matters List

Attachment 14

A B C D E F G H
Lead
Date Placed Priorit . . .. .
Pending Agenda Matter on List Duties/Deliverables Additional Information/Details Levely Timeline/Deadline | Scheduled | Commissioner(s), if
1 any
No later than two (2) years after the City
Council has confirmed the first set of
Commissioners and alternates, the Cit
City Auditor's Office to Present . . . Y .
) ) City Auditor to conduct a performance [Auditor shall conduct a performance audit and
Performance and Financial . . . . . . . . . .
. . audit and a financial audit of the a financial audit of the Commission and the Medium Spring, 2020
Audit of Commission and L . . o .
Commission and the Agency Agency. Nothing herein shall limit the City
Agency s .
Auditor’s authority to conduct future
performance and financial audits of the
15 Commission and the Agency.
C ity Policing Task
ommunity FOlicing 1as 1/24/2019 Medium Dorado
16 Force/Summit
Receive any and all reports prepared by the
Community Policing Advisory Board
(hereinafter referred to as “CPAB”) and
consider acting upon any of the CPAB’s
CPAB Report recommendations for promoting community Medium [May or June 2020
policing efforts and developing solutions for
promoting and sustaining a relationship of
trust and cooperation between the
17 Department and the community.
The C issi Id like t t
Desk Audit of CPRA Staff by € Lommission would Tike to reques- This will enable the Police Commission to . .
5/17/2019 | that Human Resources do a desk audit . L Medium Personnel Committee
Human Resources . . engage in a reorganization of the CPRA.
18 for every job position in the CPRA.
Determine Outstanding Issues Need report from police chief and city
in Meet and Confe.r ahd'the 10/6/2018 attornt'ay. Also n.ee?d status report :flbout Medium
Status of M&C on Disciplinary collective bargaining process that is expected
19 Reports to begin soon.
Develop Plan for Quarterly The Commission is required to submit arT
Reports in Relation to Annual annual report each year to the Mayor, City
P . . 12/6/2019 Council and the public. Preparing quarterly Medium
Report that is Due April 17th of . . o
reports will help with the coordination and
Each Year :
20 preparation of an annual report.

Page 6 of 13



Police Commission Pending Agenda Matters List

Attachment 14

A B C D E F G H
Lead
Date Placed Priorit:
Pending Agenda Matter on List Duties/Deliverables Additional Information/Details Lev;Iy Timeline/Deadline | Scheduled | Commissioner(s), if
1 any
Community members representing Najiri claim
the officer lied re. the time of interaction,
Follow up on Najiri Smith Case | 10/10/2018 which makes the citation (loud music after Medium
10pm) invalid. They claimed he was engaged
21 by OPD around 9.10pm.
Thi i ti d at ting i
Free Gun Trace Service 1/27/2020 Is service was mentioned at a meeting In Medium Dorado
22 2019.
Modify Code of Conduct from On code of conduct for Commissioners there is
Public Ethics Commission for | 10/2/2018 currently a code that was developed by the Medium
23 Police Commission Public Ethics Commission.
Review existing policy (if any) and take
testimony/evidence from experts and
community about best practices for
supervisory accountability. Draft policy
OPD Supervision Policies 10/2/2018 changes as needed. In addition, |G should Medium
conduct study of supervisor discipline
practices. In other words, how often are
supervisors held accountable for the
24 misconduct of their subordinates.
. . The owner of the night club spoke during
OPD Updat New Karibb OPD t d dat the stat
P @ t'aon ew Raribbean 10/29/2019 -o provide an up‘a € onthe status Open Forum at the meeting on 10.10.19 about| Medium
City Night Club Issue of an issue that was raised on 10.10.19 . )
25 an issue with OPD.
Provide the City Administrator with its
Proposal Fc.)r ?taff Positions for 1/1/2018 propos.al .for staff positions nee.de.d for Medium Ongoing. as
Commission and CPRA Commission and Agency to fulfill its appropriate
2% functions and duties
Receive a Report from the Ad Once the Commission has an outside . . .
] . When a draft process is determined, bring to .
Hoc Committee on CPRA 6/13/2019 |counsel, work with them on . Medium Brown, Gage, Prather
. the Commission for a vote.
27 Appellate Process determining an appellate process
) Commissioner Dorado will invite David Harris
Receive Report from Urban of Urban Strategies to give a report on the
Strategies on their Safe 8/22/2019 & . & . P Medium Dorado
. Safe Oakland Summit which was held on
)8 Oakland Summit of 6.5.19 6.5.19

Page 7 of 13



Police Commission Pending Agenda Matters List

Attachment 14

A B C D E F G H
Lead
Date Placed Priorit: o . .. .
Pending Agenda Matter on List Duties/Deliverables Additional Information/Details Levely Timeline/Deadline | Scheduled | Commissioner(s), if
1 any
OPD will report on the Department’s This came about through a question from Nino
Report from OPD Regarding . p - P . gnaq .
) 7/12/2019 |[policy for disposition of Parker. The Chief offered to present a report | Medium
Found/Confiscated Items . . .
29 found/confiscated items. at a future meeting.
Submit a report to the Mayor, City
. . Council and the public regarding the
Report Regarding OPD Chief's Annually; once per
P & & 1/1/2018 |[Chief’s report in addition to other The Chief's report needs to be completed first. | Medium Y P
Report . year
matters relevant to the functions and
duties of the Commission
30
In Discipline Training it was noted that many
"lower level" investigations are outsourced to
direct supervisors and sergeants. Leaders in
IAD have agreed that it would be helpful to
Review Budget and Resources 10/10/2018 double.investigators and' st.op outsourcing to Medium
of IAD Supervisors/Sgts. Commissioners have also
wondered about an increase civilian
investigators. Does the Commission have
jurisdiction over this?
31
Review C ission's Agend
eview om.m|55|or1 s Agenda 4/25/2019 Medium
32 Setting Policy
Review C ission's Code of
eview omm|SS|0n. >-oaeo 4/25/2019 Medium Prather
33 Conduct Policy
Review Commission's Outreach
. 4/25/2019 Medium Dorado
34 Policy
The contract posted on the Commission's
website does not comport with the
specifications of the Ordinance. As it stands,
Revise Cc?nFracts with CPRA 10/10/2018 the Commissilon cgunsel reports dire<':tIY to the Medium
and Commission Legal Counsels City Attorney's Office, not the Commission.
The Commission has yet to see the CPRA
attorney's contract, but it, too, may be
roblematic.
35 P

Page 8 of 13



Police Commission Pending Agenda Matters List

Attachment 14

A B C D E F G H
Lead
Date Placed Priorit: o . .. .
Pending Agenda Matter on List Duties/Deliverables Additional Information/Details Levely Timeline/Deadline | Scheduled | Commissioner(s), if
1 any
This is part of Use of Force Policy; Review use
of tasers in light of what happened to
' Tase'er Policy 10/10/2018 Marcel'lu? Toney - !n the' report'the Medium
(incorporate into Use of Force) Commission was given, it mentioned that
officers have choice as to where to deploy a
36 taser.
Revisit Standi dAdH
evisi .an mga?n oc 10/29/2019 Low
37 Committee Assignments
DGO C-1is an OPD policy that outlines
standards for personal appearance. This policy
Amendment of DGO C-1 should be amended to use more inclusive
(Grooming & Appearance 10/10/2018 language, and to avoid promoting appearance Low
Policy) requirements that are merely aesthetic
concerns, rather than defensible business
38 needs of the police department.
Review OPD policies or training regarding how
Assessing Res'p'o'nsiveness 10/6/2018 to assess if an individuallwh?r'n police. . Low
Capabilities encounter may have a disability that impairs
39 the ability to respond to their commands.
40| CPRA Report on App Usage | 10/10/2018 Report from staff on usage of app. Low
Create a form for Commissioners to use
in providing annual comments,
observations and assessments to the
Creation of Form Regardin City Administrator regarding the
'g & Y R .g & To be done once Inspector General position is
Inspector General's Job 1/1/2018 |Inspector General’s job performance. filled Low
Performance Each Commissioner shall complete the ’
form individually and submit his or her
completed form to the City
Administrator confidentially.
41

Page 9 of 13



Police Commission Pending Agenda Matters List

Attachment 14

A

B

D

E

G

H

Pending Agenda Matter

Date Placed
on List

Duties/Deliverables

Additional Information/Details

Priority
Level

Timeline/Deadline

Scheduled

Lead
Commissioner(s), if
any

42

De-Escalation Policy
(incorporate into Use of Force)

1/1/2018

This should be part of Use of Force Policy;
review existing policy (if any) and take
testimony/evidence from experts and
community about best practices for de-
escalation.

Low

43

Discipline: Based on Review of
MOU

10/6/2018

How often is Civil Service used v. arbitration?

How long does each process take?

What are the contributing factors for the length of
the process?

How often are timelines not met at every level?
How often is conflict resolution process used?
How long is it taking to get through it?

Is there a permanent arbitration list?

What is contemplated if there’s no permanent list?
How often are settlement discussions held at step
5?

How many cases settle?

Is there a panel for Immediate dispute resolution?
How many Caloca appeals? How many are
granted?

What happened to the recommendations in the
Second Swanson report?

Low

Page 10 of 13



Police Commission Pending Agenda Matters List

Attachment 14

A

B

D

E

G

H

Pending Agenda Matter

Date Placed
on List

Duties/Deliverables

Additional Information/Details

Priority
Level

Timeline/Deadline

Scheduled

Lead
Commissioner(s), if
any

44

Discipline: Second Swanson
Report Recommendations —
Have These Been
Implemented?

10/6/2018

Supervisor discipline

Process for recommending improvements to
policies, procedures and training, and to track and
implement recommendations

Tracking officer training and the content of training
Comparable discipline imposed — database of
discipline imposed, demonstrate following
guidelines

IAD civilian oversight for continuity in IAD
Improved discovery processes

Permanent arbitration panel implemented from
MOU

OPD internal counsel

Two attorneys in OCA that support OPD disciplines
and arbitration

Reports on how OCA is supporting OPD in
discipline matters and reports on arbitration
Public report on police discipline from Mayor’s
office

OIG audit includes key metrics on standards of
discipline

Low

45

Feedback from Youth on CPRA
App

10/10/2018

Get some feedback from youth as to what
ideas, concerns, questions they have about its
usability.

Low

46

OPD Data and Reporting

Review and comment on the Department’s
police and/or practice of publishing
Department data sets and reports regarding
various Department activities, submit its
comments to the Chief, and request the Chief
to consider its recommendations and respond
to the comments in writing.

Low

47

Outreach Committee: Work
with Mayor's Office and City
Admin to Publicize CPRA App

10/10/2018

Low

48

Overtime Usage by OPD - Cost
and Impact on Personal Health;
Moonlighting for AC Transit

1/1/2018

Request Office of Inspector General conduct
study of overtime usage and "moonlighting"
practices.

Low

Page 11 of 13



Police Commission Pending Agenda Matters List

Attachment 14

A

B

D

E

G

H

Pending Agenda Matter

Date Placed
on List

Duties/Deliverables

Additional Information/Details

Priority
Level

Timeline/Deadline

Scheduled

Lead
Commissioner(s), if
any

49

Process to Review Allegations
of Misconduct by a
Commissioner

10/2/2018

Maureen Benson named concerns/allegations
about a sitting Commissioner early in 2018,
but no process exists which allows for
transparency or a way to have those concerns
reviewed. It was suggested to hold a hearing
where anyone making allegations presents
evidence, the person named has an
opportunity to respond and then the
Commission decides if there's sanctions or not.
*Suggestion from Regina Jackson: we should
design a form...check box for the
allegation...provide narrative to
explain..hearing within 4 weeks?

Low

Jackson

50

Proposed Budget re: OPD
Training and Education for
Sworn Employees on
Management of Job-Related
Stress

1/1/2018

Prepare for submission to the Mayor a
proposed budget regarding training and

education for Department sworn

employees regarding management of

job-related stress.

(See Trauma Informed Policing Plan)

Review and comment on the education and
training the Department provides its sworn
employees regarding the management of job-
related stress, and regarding the signs and
symptoms of posttraumatic stress disorder,
drug and alcohol abuse, and other job-related
mental and emotional health issues. The
Commission shall provide any
recommendations for more or different
education and training to the Chief who shall
respond in writing consistent with section
604(b)(6) of the Oakland City Charter. Prepare
and deliver to the Mayor, the City
Administrator and the Chief by April 15 of each
year, or such other date as set by the Mayor, a
proposed budget for providing the education
and training identified in subsection (C) above.

Low

4/15/2021

51

Public Hearing on OPD Budget

1/1/2018

Conduct at least one public hearing on

the Police Department’s budget

Tentative release date of Mayor’s proposed
budget is May 1st of each year.

Low

Page 12 of 13



Police Commission Pending Agenda Matters List

Attachment 14

A B C D E F G H
Lead
Date Placed Priorit: o . .. .
Pending Agenda Matter on List Duties/Deliverables Additional Information/Details Levely Timeline/Deadline | Scheduled | Commissioner(s), if
1 any
Public Hearings on OPD CZI?ji:zt :)uL:::C hrzZtr::egss oc:slisr:asrtgr:nt Annually; at least
Policies, Rules, Practices, 1/1/2018 P ! i ! ! Low Vi Dorado
General Orders; CPRA suggests once per year
Customs, General Orders L .
52 reviewing Body Camera Policy
Social Media Communication . . . I .
o L Decide on social media guidelines regarding
Responsibilities, Coordination, | 7/30/2019 . A Low
. responsibilities and coordination.
53 and Policy

Page 13 of 13



	Police Commission 4.23.20 Agenda FINAL
	4.23.20 Item 4 Manheimer Bio 2019
	4.23.20 Item 6 CPRA Statistical Report for Commission
	2020.4.16 CPRA Pending Cases (by 1-year goal).final
	2020.4.16 CPRA Pending Cases (by Assigned Staff).final
	Completed Cases Chart 200416 Final

	4.23.20 Item 9 NOAB
	Oakland Police Commission Letter in Suppport of NOAB January 9 2020
	NOABsupportletter
	DRAFT NOAB MOU - OPD-NICJR - 2-14--20

	4.23.20 Item 13 4.9.20 Minutes DRAFT
	4.23.20 Item 14 Pending Agenda Matters
	Pending Agenda Matters




